
MEETING: Children and Young People's Trust 
Executive Group Meeting

DATE: Monday, 13 November 2017
TIME: 1.30 pm
VENUE: Westgate, Level 3, Boardroom

AGENDA

1.  Apologies   13:30

2.  Feedback from the Front Line  (Verbal Report) 
An opportunity for colleagues to share real examples of good practice or 
challenges on the front line

3.  Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflict of interest   

4.  Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 28 September 2017  
(Pages 3 - 10) 
(For Accuracy) CONFIDENTIAL

Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (1) Information relating to any individual.

4.1  Action Log/Matters Arising  (Pages 11 - 12)
CONFIDENTIAL

For Discussion

5.  Transport  (Pages 13 - 22) 13:45
( Paul Castle / Mark Anderson)

Children and Young People's Plan Monitoring

Improving Education, Achievement and Employability

6.  Careers Advice and Guidance  (Pages 23 - 80) 14:05
(Tom Smith)

Updates on Progress

Standard Agenda Items

7.  Continuous Service Improvement Plan  (Verbal Report) 14:25
- Members Comments  CONFIDENTIAL 

Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (2, 7a) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality.

8.  Sufficiency Strategy for Special Educational Need Provision (SEND) Update  
(Verbal Report) 14:40
(Richard Lynch)  CONFIDENTIAL

Public Document Pack



Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (1) Information relating to any individual.

9.  TEG Work Programme Review  (Pages 81 - 84) 15:00
(Richard Lynch) 

10.  Terms of Reference / Partnership Agreement Revision  (To Follow) 15:25
(Richard Lynch) CONFIDENTIAL

Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (1) Information relating to any individual.

11.  Review of CYP Plan  (Pages 85 - 112) 15:25
(Richard Lynch)

Proposed agenda items for next meeting on 19 January 2018 
 Continuous Service Improvement Plan – Confidential
 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance highlights/ risks
 TEG work programme review (Richard Lynch)
 Access to therapeutic support and waiting times (Brigid Reid/ Claire Strachan)
 CIC CAMHS Pathway (Claire Strachan/Brigid Reid)
 Vulnerable children with SEN (Margaret Libreri)
 0-19 Public Health - HCP progress against new 0 – 19 model (Alicia Marcroft?) 
 Looked After Children Sufficiency Strategy/ Foster Carer Placements (Richard Lynch/Jon 

Banwell) 
 Information sharing (Sara Hydon/Wendy Lowder)

Dates of 2018 TEG Meetings



Document is Restricted

Page 3

Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Item 4.1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 1 of 2

REPORT FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST 
EXECUTIVE GROUP

Date of meeting: 13th November 2017

Report Title: Transport Issues Raised by Young People – Meeting held on 3rd March 2017 
– Progress Report

Author: Name: Mark Anderson
Job Title: Transportation Officer
E-mail: markanderson@barnsley.gov.uk
Telephone: 01226772214

Status of report: Not confidential

Approved by: Paul Castle

1. Purpose of report/ Introduction/ Background

To provide an update on progress in relation to transport issues key action points raised 
following attendance of Barnsley Bus Partnership at TEG meeting held on 3rd March 2017.  

Prior to the 3rd March meeting, a selection of young people from the Youth Council and the 
Care for Us Council had been asked for their views on the strategic priorities and impacts of 
the Children and Young Person’s Plan, and whether there was anything of particular 
importance to young people in Barnsley.  One of the major issues raised was affordable and 
accessible transport to enable young people to attend school and access services.  It was 
therefore agreed that an invitation would be extended to colleagues and partners to attend a 
TEG meeting to discuss further and provide a progress update to young people.

The Youth Council were subsequently informed of the action points raised at this meeting, so 
that young people would know what happened as a result of their input.     

2. Recommendations

Members are asked to:
2.1 Note the content of the report as attached in Appendix A.

3. Conclusion/ next steps

4. Risks/ barriers
None associated with this report.  

5. Financial Implications
None associated with this report.  

6. Co-production/ stakeholder engagement
This report has been written from input received from partners at the SYPTE and Stagecoach Yorkshire and 
follows views previously taken from the Youth Council.   

 

Page 13

Item 5



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 2 of 2

7. Appendices/ background papers

7.1
Appendix A - Progress Report to Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group 
Meeting – 13th November 2017

Transport Issues Raised by Young People – Previous meeting held on the 3rd March 2017

Please note that any presentations need to be sent to the CYPTrust mailbox no later than a 
day before the meeting. Presentations cannot be brought on a datastick. 

Page 14



Appendix A

Progress Report to Children and Young People’s Trust Executive 
Group Meeting – 13th November 2017

Transport Issues Raised by Young People – Previous meeting held on the 3rd 
March 2017

Reported that a Bus Partnership Agreement was signed in January 2017 with 
the aim to improving the bus network and increasing bus patronage in 
Barnsley:  

Update: 

The Governance arrangements for the Barnsley Bus Partnership have now been 
finalised with the establishment of a Steering Group.  This will provide the 
Partnership’s strategic direction, with the existing Operations Group sitting below 
this Steering Group.  Its first meeting is due to take place on the 16th November with 
subsequent meetings to be held every 4 months.  Barnsley MBC will be represented 
by Paul Castle and Cllr Roy Miller.  

Reported in 2015 a Transport Strategy was adopted to improve transport links 
and tackle anti-social behaviour and safeguarding issues.  

Update: 

The Sheffield City Region (SCR) Transport Strategy is currently being refreshed and 
will provide the strategic priorities and ambitions for the whole city region.  A public 
consultation is scheduled to start in November which will run for 12 weeks.  The 
strategic goals for the SCR Transport Strategy include:

1. Supporting Inclusive Economic Growth;
2. Creating Healthy Streets where people feel safe;
3. Improving the quality of our outdoors;
4. Promoting, enabling and adopting different technologies.  

Underpinning these goals will be policies which provide a framework for guiding all 
decision making processes.  Complementing this strategy will be an implementation 
plan of specific transport interventions.  

Page 15



The Barnsley Transport Strategy will subsequently have to be updated to reflect 
changes within this document.  

Reported that priorities for Barnsley MBC involve the investing in 
infrastructure, improving the free flow of traffic and air quality:    

Update: 

The Highways and Transportation team have submitted two bids to the Department 
for Transport’s (DfT) ‘National Productivity Investment Fund’ for Dodworth Road and 
the A61 between Wakefield Road and Old Mill Lane Bridge.  The Traffic team has 
also recently submitted a bid to the DfT’s ‘Local Highways Maintenance Challenge 
Fund’ to improve road safety along the A628 at Hoylandswaine.  Details of these 
bids are available to view on BMBC website.  Please see links below:

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/department-for-
transport-grant-fund-a61/

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/department-for-
transport-grant-fund-a628/

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/local-highways-
maintenance-challenge-fund/

Highways and Engineering has regular ‘hot spot’ meetings with South Yorkshire 
Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE) and Stagecoach Plc regarding congestion 
pinch points in the road network.

A number of cycle routes have been created over the past 2 years through the DfT’s 
Sustainable Transport Exemplar Programme (STEP) with 3 further projects planned 
for this year. These are aimed at improving walking and cycling links to the Town 
Centre and other key employment sites in the north east of the Borough. Total 
investment of £1.7M.

Reported a Local Barnsley Transport User Group has been established to 
consult with, and consider the needs of, different customer groups, including 
the Youth Council.  The first Youth User Group will be held over Easter.   

Update:  

The latest meeting of the Youth Users Group was held on 10th August 2017 and 
attended by all youth council’s from South Yorkshire as well as SYPTE, Stagecoach 
Yorkshire, First Yorkshire and TM Travel.  

Key Discussions included:

 SYPTE priorities for 2017/2018;
 16/18 Travel Pass update – this was introduced on 1st July;  

Page 16

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/department-for-transport-grant-fund-a61/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/department-for-transport-grant-fund-a61/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/department-for-transport-grant-fund-a628/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/department-for-transport-grant-fund-a628/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/local-highways-maintenance-challenge-fund/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/roads-travel-and-parking/local-highways-maintenance-challenge-fund/


 Customer Service Training;
 Information collection of customer comments;
 Information on Transport Interchanges in South Yorkshire.  

Reported for children and young people aged 11-16 there is a Mega Travel 
Pass which is available throughout the year, and young people aged 16-18 
who are in full time education can get a student pass which is valid for the 
academic year from Sept to July.  It was noted that currently, young 
apprentices don’t qualify.  The concessionary fare is 80p.  SYPTE are already 
working with schools and colleges to consider ways to support and expand 
young people’s access to concessionary travel, including those in 
apprenticeships.

Update:

From 1st July 2017, the ‘Student Pass’ was replaced and all 16-18 year olds living in 
South Yorkshire, including those on apprenticeships and in employment, can now 
apply for a ‘16-18 Travel Pass’ to benefit from child concessionary fares.  This pass 
will now also be valid in August, instead of previously just during term time.  
Concessionary fare remains at 80p and applies for bus and tram travel as well as 
half price rail travel within South Yorkshire.  

Reported Young people who are not in education, employment or training 
(NEET) are more likely to be vulnerable and it is therefore important to support 
them into work placements.  Lancashire County Council’s Post 16 Transport 
Policy Statement describes the transport support available to young people 
aged 16-19 of age who are entering or continuing in further education and 
learning, including apprenticeships and traineeships.

Update: 

In addition to the new 16-18 Travel Pass, SYPTE also offers a SY Connect20 ticket 
for 19 and 20 year olds which allows discounted travel on all buses and trams in 
South Yorkshire.  The Travelmaster20 ticket also offers discounted travel on train 
travel within South Yorkshire.   

Barnsley MBC also offers a Zero Fare Pass (ZFP) which entitles a child to travel for 
free on public transport to school and back.  This is available only during term time 
and up to the end of year 11.  This can only be used on public transport between the 
nearest bus stop near home and nearest bus stop at school.  

Eligibility 

 Pupils aged 5 to 7 who live 2 miles from school’
 Pupils aged 8 to 16 who live 3 miles from school;

Page 17



 Parents receive either the highest level of working tax credit or children 
receive free school meals and transport costs are prevent applications to 
certain schools;

 A child is in years 10 or 11 and family moves home which is over 3 miles from 
school previously attended.

Reported The SYPTE are looking at how young people are communicated with 
to make sure that they are aware of the travel passes that are available to 
them, including value for money ticket options.

Update: 

Please note information is not specific to Barnsley, but instead South Yorkshire wide 
– but it is still relevant as Barnsley was included:

• 16-18 Travel Pass promotional campaign 

Delivered from July-end September, using a mix of digital and traditional marketing 
channels including social media, online adverts, E-newsletter, school/college 
mailings & resources, posters and leaflets at Interchanges and on vehicle. The 
campaign was supported by a landing page on travelsouthyorkshire.com which 
received over 75,000 views, resulting in 19,713 applications across South Yorkshire 
during the campaign period with over 90% of applications being online.

• 11-16 MegaTravel Pass promotional campaign

Delivered from May – end September, using a mix of digital and traditional 
marketing channels including social media, E-newsletter, school mailings & 
resources, posters and leaflets at Interchanges and on vehicle. The campaign 
landing page on travelsouthyorkshire.com received 18,594 views, with all 
MegaTravel related pages receiving 73,325 page views, resulting in 8,803 
applications across South Yorkshire during the campaign period.

• Value for money child tickets leaflet

Leaflet developed to communicate value for money child tickets available and sent 
to secondary schools across South Yorkshire

• Youth Travel Leaflets 

Currently working on development of 2 leaflets which can be included with new 11-
16 MegaTravel and 16-18 Travel Passes when issued. The leaflets will 
communicate information on the travel pass and also value for money tickets for 
young people.

Page 18



Business to business team activity

With regards to the 16-18 pass:-

• There are only 2 establishments in Barnsley with a FE provision, these are 
Barnsley College and Penistone school.

• Both were contacted and offered support.  Penistone were happy to promote 
via the suppliers supplied to them and also by electronically to parents.  They 
didn’t request any further support.

• SYPTE met with Barnsley College Student Services before the launch of the 
16-18 pass to inform them of the process.  They were supplied with printed 
leaflets, posters and also electronic media.  They were also provided with 
manual application forms in case they had students that couldn’t apply on line.  

• SYPTE also attended Barnsley College Fresher’s Fair to promote the pass 
and value for money tickets.

• Current figures as per SMT’s latest overview are that 16% of the 20,000 
applications came from Barnsley which equate to 3,200 applications.  

• In addition 14 Training organisations were contacted in Barnsley to promote 
the pass and supplied with electronic media.

A new marketing campaign will start in early November focussed on youth market.  
The main focus of which will be on independence, boosting social skills and 
confidence. 

A photographer has been employed who has taken location photos of Barnsley.  
The focus of marketing campaign will be on place and locations, such as Barnsley 
College and Metrodome, instead of young people.

Age bracket for marketing is 11 to 18.  Marketing to parents and over 16’s will be via 
online with ad’s built into websites.  Online marketing will also consist of Twitter, 
Facebook, Instagram and Snapchat. 

Any online links will then go through to promoting what travel tickets are available, 
including value for money ticket options.          

Page 19



Reported that there had been a lot of feedback that some children and adults 
don’t feel safe moving through transport interchange due to anti-social 
behaviour.  It is important to safeguard children and young people and 
vulnerable adults.  SYPTE are working in partnership with South Yorkshire 
Police and Council in relation to anti-social behaviour issues, but it was 
acknowledged that the issues are complex and may be difficult to resolve.

Update: 

Barnsley Interchange accredited with the Safer Bus Station award a national award 
for measures taken to provide a safe environment for both passengers and staff. 
making it one of only 13 bus stations in the country to hold the title. The recognition 
comes as SYPTE has made a number of improvements to safety and security 
across the interchange, which has resulted in 76%* of passengers recently reporting 
that they feel fairly or very safe whilst in the interchange. 

As part of SYPTE’s long term commitment to improving its customer service offer to 
meet the needs of all passengers, employees at Barnsley Interchange have recently 
begun a trial introduction of wearing body cameras when on duty, the first site in 
South Yorkshire to benefit from this new technology, if the trial is a success cameras 
will be supplied to staff across all South Yorkshire interchanges.

Reported it is important to ensure that the Better Barnsley Scheme includes 
something for everyone, including places for young people to go other than 
the transport interchange.  

Update: 

The ‘Better Barnsley’ scheme involves the development of ‘The Glassworks’, with 
phase 1 opening in Spring 2018 and Phase 2 opening in Spring 2020.  This will 
completely regenerate the town centre and provide the following:

 25 shops
 Cinema
 Bowling alley
 10 restaurants
 Refurbished markets. 

In Autumn 2018, the Library @ The Lightbox will be completed and will act as a 
library and a community centre, open to everyone, including businesses, 
organisations and community groups.  Busy spaces will be filled with activities which 
will be balanced with quieter areas for study.    

Fully accessible, the lightbox will also include:

 Out of hours opening with new smart cards;
 A cafe that connects to the library;

Page 20



 Wi-Fi;
 A sanctuary space;
 Almost double the current IT facilities within the existing library;
 A roof terrace overlooking the town;
 A changing place;
 Opportunities for activities, functions and events.

Reported Stagecoach work closely with schools and ensure that their drivers 
are trained to deal with difficult situations.  

Update: 

Continued engagement with schools to tackle anti-social behaviour.  All buses are 
fitted with audio and CCTV footage, which allows individuals to be targeted and 
appropriate action taken.  All buses are equipped with AVL Tracking, which allows 
the location of buses to be known at all times.  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 1 of 3

REPORT FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST 
EXECUTIVE GROUP

Date of meeting: 13/11/2017

Report Title: CEIAG Update

Author: Name: T Smith
Job Title: Head of Employment and Skills
E-mail: 
Telephone: 

Status of report: not confidential

Approved by: Head of Employment and Skills.

1. a) Purpose of report/ Introduction/ Background
i. To update the Trust Executive Group on the national and local position relating to the 

delivery of Careers Education, Information, Advice and Guidance (CEIAG)

b) Introduction:
i. The 2012 Education and Skills Act introduced wholesale changes to the way young 

people were to be offered CEIAG. From this point new statutory duties, which are still 
in force today, were applied separately to schools, training providers and local 
authorities. The duties require:
 All schools to be responsible for the provision of independent, impartial 

Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) for all students from the age of 14;
 All post 16 providers to promote good attendance and provide independent, 

impartial IAG for all learners;
 All local authorities to promote the Raising of the Participation Age and provide 

independent, impartial IAG for vulnerable learners who either have an EHCP, are 
on a YOT order, are looked after or care leavers or 16-18 year olds not in 
Education or Employment NEET;

 All young people to continue in accredited education or training until their 
eighteenth birthday.

ii. Over the intervening four years since the act, effective CEIAG for young people has 
been slow to build on what had been in place previously:
 Ofsted’s 2016 report highlights that CEIAG was considered to be effective in only 

25% of school inspections;
 Locally 30% of the Barnsley’s secondary schools have successfully gained a 

nationally recognised quality award for effective CEIAG;
 CBI and other employer forums continue to express concerns over the skills gap 

between school leavers and industry.
iii. These concerns have led a number of groups including a commons select committee 

to make a number of recommendations and whilst the government has fallen short of 
making a judgement about the effectiveness of CEIAG a limiting judgement in the 
Common Inspection Framework (CIF), it has taken the following steps to alleviate 
concerns:
 The adoption of the Gatsby Report, and its eight benchmarks, as the key 

elements underpinning effective CEIAG for young people;

Page 23

Item 6



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 2 of 3

 Effectiveness of CEIAG, as defined by the Gatsby benchmarks, now forms part 
of the criteria in three of the key judgements made as part of the CIF;

 Through the Department for Education (DfE), it has established the Careers and 
Enterprise Company (CEC) to lead national initiatives to support schools to meet 
their statutory duties to the standards set by the Gatsby Report; 

 Apprentice reforms now place employers central to the design of future 
apprentice standards and incentivise employer engagement in the reforms 
through the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy.

iv. At a local level, Barnsley has responded to the 2012 Education and Skills Act in a 
number of ways:
 IAG expertise has been rationalised to form a Targeted Information, Advice and 

Guidance Team of advisers to address the local authority’s statutory duties in 
respect of vulnerable learners;

 The I Know I Can offer has expanded its range of employability activities in order 
to support schools and providers to meet their statutory duties;

 The Raising Participation Strategy 2014/16 
v. As data analysis shows (Raising Participation Strategy 2017/2020), success has been 

achieved but further work is required if we are to fulfil our aspiration of ‘participation 
and progression for all’. To achieve this aspiration it is recognised that:
 A One Council approach has to be adopted to effectively meet the diverse needs 

of those most likely to become NEET;
 Further enhancement of the I Know I Can offer should maximise the benefits 

gained from Young People’s Skills and Enterprise Service’s integral part in the 
economic re-generation of Barnsley and its links with a myriad of local 
employers;

vi. To these ends, recent developments have included:
 A revised I Know I Can offer (Appendix A) closely aligned to the Gatsby 

benchmarks and incorporating national initiatives led by the CEC;
 The implementation of Pathways to Success (Appendix B) to promote 

opportunities for young people to get ready for work and get into work through 
experiences with council as an employer;

 The development of the More and Better Jobs task force to deliver the borough’s 
employment and skills strategy through the identification of the skills local 
employers require and the development of an employers promise encouraging all 
local employers to invest in the borough’s future workforce through the offer of 
opportunities to inspire and inform young people about the world of work;

 The launch of the Raising Participation Strategy 2017/2020 (Appendix C).
2. Recommendations

Members are asked to:
a) Approve and promote:

i. The I Know I Can Offer to schools;
ii. The Pathways to Success framework and its links to the council’s employment and 

Skills Strategy: More and Better Jobs;
iii. The Barnsley Raising Participation Strategy 2017/2020

b) Contribute to each of the above as possible from their service areas
3. Conclusion/ next steps

Success in recent years has been strong but analysis of young people who are not 
participating post-16 shows a need to implement a different approach: working in partnership 
to implement the I Know I Can Offer; the Pathways to Success and the Barnsley Raising 
Participation Strategy 2017/2020 will help us do this.

4. Risks/ barriers
Failure to implement will result in the non-achievement of Key Performance Indicators and 
vulnerable young people will be further marginalised from the labour market.

Page 24



Title of the Report
Service / author / date

Page 3 of 3

5. Financial Implications
None

6. Co-production/ stakeholder engagement
a) The 2017/18 I Know I Can offer was developed jointly through a cross sector steering 

group combining LA officers, local employers, senior leaders from secondary,  primary 
and special schools, Barnsley college and local training providers. This group also 
consulted with young people through the Youth Council.

b) Pathways to Success was developed by a council steering group drawing together 
colleagues from, HR, finance, workforce development, Young People’s Skills and 
Enterprise Service and Adult Skills and Community Learning. Draft proposals were 
shared with SMT and BLT as part of the development.

c) The Raising Participation Strategy was drawn up by the Raising Participation Strategy 
Manager following consultation with officers in Employment and Skills, CEIAG leads in 
schools, post 16 training and education providers. Before finalisation, the draft strategy 
was shared with Directorate Management Teams in PEOPLE and PLACE for 
consultation.

7. Appendices/ background papers
 Appendix A: I Know I Can Offer to schools 2017/18
 Appendix B: Pathways to Success
 Appendix C: Raising Participation Strategy 2017/2020

Please note that any presentations need to be sent to the CYPTrust mailbox no later than a 
day before the meeting. Presentations cannot be brought on a datastick. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I KNOW I CAN  (IKIC) OFFER 
2015/16 

 

Page 27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Welcome to I Know I Can (IKIC) 
 

“Intelligence without ambition is like a bird without wings”  

Salvador Dali 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents: 

    2.     What is I Know I Can (IKIC) 

 

 3-4.     IKIC Offer 

 

5-6.      Support for schools to deliver independent and impartial information, advice and guidance (IAG) 

 

   7-12.      Support young people’s personal and social development 

 

13-14.     Support the achievement, progression and participation of young people 

 

15.         Key Contacts 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

I Know I Can is Barnsley’s response to the need to raise aspiration and ambition 
amongst young people across the borough. 
 

IKIC’s aims are to: 

 INSPIRE: by building confidence and creating dreams and goals 

 ENABLE: by helping young people acquire the appropriate qualifications  

and strengthen life skills 

 SUPPORT: by helping young people to access information, advice and guidance  

to take ownership of their lives and future 

  
We want all of our young people to: 

 
 Have confidence in the choices they make whether they are in progression or life 

 Be able to create dreams and be aspirant in all that they do 

 Be able to attain through qualifications at the highest level possible 

 Develop and recognise life skills and their value in a modern workforce and 

society 

 Know where and who to approach for help and support in all areas of life 

 Take ownership of their lives and develop a “Can do” attitude 

The IKIC brand is used by projects and organisations that deliver to and support young 
people across the borough to help our young people move towards the above aims. 

 

Getting involved in I Know I Can will mean: 

 

 Young people will have high aspirations and receive support to help them  

achieve their potential 

 Plan the best future for them and engage in the best post 16 education, training  

and/or employment 

 Support schools and providers to offer an outstanding offer in the fulfilment  

of their statutory duties around Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) 

 

Page 29



 

  

Gatsby benchmark KS1     Primary      KS2   KS3     Secondary      KS4                                Post-16                                                         Parents 
1. A stable careers 
programme 

 CEIAG schools duties training for Governors as part of Barnsley Council Governor training programme 

 CEIAG Award Support 

 Careers, Education, Information, Advice and Guidance (CEIAG) Network meetings for CEIAG coordinators 

 CEIAG evaluation as part of schools’ Peer Review Process 

2. Learning from career & 
labour market information 

                                                                           Career Material  for parents evening 
age group specific 

 

                                                                                                                                                                             IKIC Website 

 Labour Market Information (LMI) materials and presentation targeting Y9 choices 
IKIC Website available via iknowican.co.uk 

3. Addressing the needs of 
each pupil 

 Targeted Information, Advice & Guidance (TIAG) Team support 
for LAC; care leavers; EHCP; young people on YOT orders & post 
16 NEET 

 

                  Takeover Day for looked after children  

 Work inspiration week  

 Vulnerable Matrix RONI 

 KUDOS careers software available via iknowican.co.uk  - Aug 2018  

 Targeted Youth Support (TYS) support through IKIC Young Peoples Centres or through referral in school 

4. Linking curriculum 
learning to careers 

 Enterprise Advisers: working with individual schools to engage 
businesses and employers in the development and delivery of 
subject curriculums 

 

                   Big Challenge: enterprise competition drawing on the expertise of business mentors  

                   Enterprising Young People: delivering enterprise education in schools across the borough 

5. Encounters with employers 
and employees 

 Enterprise Advisers: working with individual schools to increase 
encounters with businesses and employers 

Enterprise Advisers: 
working with individual 
schools to engage 
businesses and employers 
to contribute to careers 
fairs 

    Ambition Barnsley  Ambition Barnsley 

 Junior Hack Day 
6. Experiences of workplaces  Enterprise Advisers: working with individual schools to engage businesses and employers to offer 

experiences of workplaces 
                           Takeover Day for looked after children  

                           Work inspiration week for targeted groups   

P
age 30



 

 
                          

  

 

 

 

7. Encounters with FE & HE                   Ambition Barnsley 

8. Personal guidance 
 

  Barnsley area wide prospectus provided free by UCAS progress 
and available via iknowican.co.uk provided free of charge by UCAS 

 Targeted Information, Advice & Guidance (TIAG) Team support 
for LAC; care leavers; EHCP; young people on YOT orders & post 
16 NEET 

 

     

P
age 31



 

  

 

 

Ofsted are looking at the extent to which CEIAG supports young people to make 

choices about their next stage of learning, how impartial it is and the quality of 

this provision. 

 

IKIC provides support to schools to deliver independent, impartial and quality information, 

advice and guidance through: 

 

The CEIAG Network 

Meeting termly, the CEIAG Network is an essential way of ensuring that IAG professionals in 

schools, colleges and other learning providers keep up to date with current best practice and 

provides a platform to share information, ideas and resources. 

 

CEIAG TeachMeet 

Our annual TeachMeet provides IAG professionals in schools, colleges and other learning 

providers with access to leading CEIAG experts, current national thinking and the chance to 

meet and work with colleagues across the borough. TeachMeet will be held in the summer 

term. 

 

CEIAG Governor Training 

To support governors in their role of ensuring compliance with duties relating to CEIAG, we can 

arrange to attend a governor meeting. Also, there is information available on the IKIC website 

(www.iknowican.co.uk) 

 

 

CEIAG Quality Award 

We can support colleagues to audit CEIAG provision, action plan and identify improvements 

in preparation for a Quality Award validated through the national Quality in Careers 

Standard. 

 

 

 

Page 32

file:///C:/Users/Angelal/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/TERMEHJP/www.iknowican.co.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

CEIAG Peer Review  

Quality CEIAG is key to ensuring young people aspire high and participate in learning. To 

complement existing Peer Review processes, we provide assessment and challenge for 

CEIAG to ensure you meet Ofsted expectations. 

 

Benefits of getting involved: These activities provide continuous professional practice 

opportunities for staff in schools to ensure that young people in Barnsley are in receipt of 

the very best CEIAG. In addition they provide a platform to share and promote good practice 

and tools to improve performance. 

 

For further information please contact Angela Lomax angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 33

mailto:angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

Ofsted are looking for the impact of the careers guidance offered in helping 

young people make informed choices.  The IKIC offer provides: 

IKIC Big Challenge 

 
The IKIC Big Challenge is an enterprise start-up competition open to young people aged 9-19 

years.  Those involved will develop essential life and work skills, including team working, risk 

taking, communication, decision making, business management and creativity. They will also 

hopefully make some money!  The competition runs throughout the academic year from 

September 2017 to April 2018. 

 

Benefits of Getting Involved:  The competition will allow schools to demonstrate the opportunity 

to   develop entrepreneurial skills for self-employment.  Young people involved in the IKIC Big 

Challenge have reported increased confidence and knowledge of business. 

 

“I have learnt finance management and have improved my teamwork skills” – Primary School 

pupil 
 

“I have learnt how to manage a business, how to meet deadlines and how to work as a team” – 

Secondary School pupil 
 

Any school wishing to be involved in the competition or wanting to find out more please 

contact Richard Shaw richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34

mailto:richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

 

Enterprising Young People 

 

Enterprise Champions are available to work with both primary and secondary schools and 
their young people across the Borough to enhance and deliver enterprise based education. 
 
Enterprise education for us is about taking the skills which are involved in starting and 
running a business, and using them to enable young people to realise how transferable and 
highly desired in all destinations and the modern workplace they are.  
 
From Enterprise Clubs through to Masterclasses, the Enterprise Champions are here to work 
with you to deliver skills enhancement in a variety of different ways subject to availability. 
 
Benefits of getting involved: Today more than ever, businesses are looking beyond 
traditional qualifications and working practices when taking on new people. Young people 
today will be required to be more flexible in their approach to work in the future and will 
need to be resilient to change. Enterprise Education is about looking at the life skills young 
people will need to ensure they can reach their optimum, this can include communication, 
decision making and financial literacy to name but a few. 
 

Any school wishing to find out more, please contact Alasdair Parker or email 

alasdairparker@barnsley.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35

mailto:alasdairparker@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

Enterprise Adviser Network  
 

The Enterprise Adviser Network is part of the national scheme to create powerful, 
lasting connections between local businesses and secondary schools and colleges.  

  
Enterprise Advisers are volunteers who work directly with the leadership teams of 
individual schools and colleges.  These volunteers have significant networks and have 
the strategic thinking to support the Senior Leadership Teams within schools to 
develop effective employer engagement strategies.  

 
Through the Enterprise Adviser Network, support will be available to enhance the 
current offer in schools and help schools develop and deliver new bespoke 
programmes.  Areas will be identified on a school-to-school basis, based on the needs 
of the schools to address the needs of their young people. Examples include: 
 

 Access to more work experience opportunities 

 Helping schools establish and develop their own alumni network 

 Employers who can attend drop down employability days and careers fayres 

 Opportunities available with large and national employers and events 

 Templates and resources for activities, as well as signposting onto useful 
activities and programmes.  

 
Benefits of Getting Involved:  The Enterprise Adviser Network will help schools to provide 

opportunities for their young people to engage with real employers and the world of work, 

helping to develop their career aspirations and employability skills.  

 
For more information please contact Richard Shaw richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk 
 

 
 

STEM Programmes 
 

The Teentech City of Tomorrow lets young people apply their knowledge of STEM to create 
their own vision of a city.  Teentech are an industry-led initiative that aims to help young 
people understand the opportunities available in the contemporary STEM workplace.    The 
secondary pilot will take place in the autumn term, with opportunity for a team to represent 
the borough at the national finals in London.   A further primary pilot is available during the 
summer term.  
 
“Some really good projects for schools to be engaged in” 
 
“Really enjoyed the event. Amazed by the work done” 
 
 
 
 

Page 36

mailto:richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

The Junior Hack Day is specifically for young people who are interested in developing their 
digital skills.  The event will be led by industry experts in the Digital Media Centre during the 
spring term and will give young people the opportunity to use their skills to jointly solve a 
problem.     
 

Benefits of Getting Involved:  Both activities will allow schools to highlight potential 
careers in STEM.  The Junior Hack Day will give young people exposure to local leaders in 
digital industries, as well as an experience of a workplace, helping young people to develop 
their digital and problem solving skills. 

 

For more information, please contact Richard Shaw richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk 

  

 

 
Targeted Youth Support – Early Intervention and Prevention Service 
 

The Targeted Youth Support service provides early help and support to children, 

young people and families who are experiencing difficulties or taking risks and who 

require help to prevent their difficulties escalating.  Support may be provided at any 

point in a child or young person’s life and families may need help in making positive 

changes. The service provides a range of universal and targeted provision including 

health and emotional support, risk taking behaviour change, diversion from crime 

and anti social behaviour, sexual health/ contraception advice and substance misuse 

support.  

The service offers targeted evening programmes along with detached, mobile and 

outreach provision where there is an identified need. These are delivered through six 

IKIC centres across the borough which are located in Athersley, Town Centre, 

Cudworth, Penistone, the Dearne and Wombwell. Opportunities for young people 

include programmes and activities that enhance life skills, build resilience and 

supports development in education, training and work, including access to decision 

making and democratic engagement.  The Early Intervention and Prevention team 

also work closely with Family Centres to coordinate support packages to those 

young  people and families with additional or more  complex needs  who may require 

a more intensive level of provision.  

For further information on any of the services within Early Intervention and 

Prevention, please contact the Wombwell IKIC Centre on 01226 753406 

 

 

 

Page 37

mailto:richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

 

Ambition Barnsley  
 

Ambition Barnsley is an interactive careers event which aims to support participation and  

positive progression through showcasing the learning pathways available in Barnsley to 

young people and their parents.  Taking place on 25th October, schools have been invited to 

bring up to 50 young people in slots throughout the day, followed by a session for young 

people and their parents and carers in the evening.  

  

Benefits of getting involved: Ambition Barnsley not only enables schools to demonstrate 

to Ofsted and other stakeholders that they are delivering independent and impartial 

information it also supports young people to have high aspirations and encourages 

participation. 

 

For more information please contact ambitionbarnsley@barnsley.gov.uk 

 

 

IKIC website and its careers and tools – offering independent and 

impartial information  
 

The IKIC Website is the key one-stop website for young people, parents, employers 

and providers to find: 

 Information to support future careers  

 Tools to search and apply for courses that young people can study after Year 11 

 Volunteering opportunities 

 Opportunities for employers to get involved 

 Ways to get young people’s voices heard 

 Resources for schools 

 

Area Wide Prospectus  

 

The Area Wide Prospectus (AWP) allows young people to explore and compare 
‘Search’ by UCAS Progress: this app enables young people to search, explore and 
compare a wide variety of post-16 courses and opportunities from schools, 
academies, colleges and work based learning providers in and around Barnsley. 
Search can be found on the IKIC website and is free to use. 
 
Benefits of getting involved: using ‘Search’ ensures you are meeting your statutory 
duties to provide independent and impartial information about ALL post-16 options 
and also supports young people to participate in post-16 learning. 
 

Page 38

mailto:ambitionbarnsley@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

 

  Takeover Day and Work Inspiration Week 
 

The initiatives, part of the Council’s Pathways to Success model, will offer targeted 
groups of young people and adults a work shadowing opportunity to gain an insight 
into the world of work and feel more open to different career pathways.   

 
Takeover Day will take place on Friday 24th November 2017 and Inspiration Work 
Week will take place in March 2018, offering different groups the shadowing 
opportunity.  
 
Benefits to getting involved: The initiatives will specifically target groups of people 
who are hard to engage.   

 
For more information contact Jeff Townend jeffreytownend@barnsley.gov.uk 

Page 39

mailto:jeffreytownend@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

 

Ofsted evaluate how well the careers provision meets the needs 

of vulnerable groups and the impact on reducing NEETS so the 

IKIC offer provides: 
 

Support for secondary schools: 

Vulnerable Matrix RoNI 

 

The Vulnerability Matrix RoNI (Risk of NEET Indicator).  The RoNI is a matrix that uses various 

collated and weighted information to determine how vulnerable a young person is to 

becoming NEET in the future. This helps schools and providers identify whether a young 

person will require additional support to access and remain in Post-16 learning.   

 

Post 16 Destination Data 

 

This will provide good evidence when Ofsted evaluate the provision of a school’s CEIAG 

in the destinations of young people post compulsory education and inform information 

of the raising participation age. 

 

Benefits of getting involved:  Pre Year 11, the RoNI could also support early intervention 

work. September Guarantee information can be provided by the Local Authority to act 

as an early indicator for schools where young people may not have a post 16 destination 

in place. An Activity Survey (Y11 leaver destinations) is provided on post 16 destinations, 

through to year 14. 

 

For more information please contact Tracey Herbert traceyherbert@barnsley.gov.uk  

 

  

Page 40

mailto:traceyherbert@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

 
                       Targeted IAG – Supporting vulnerable young people 

 

 

Targeted Information, Advice and Guidance (TIAG) Service – Supporting vulnerable 
young people 

 
The TIAG Service delivers one-to-one bespoke support to enable vulnerable young 
people to progress into learning that meets their needs and that of the local, regional 
and national economy. 

 
Pre 16, the service works with young people who have an Education Health and Care 
Plan, young people in care and those involved with the Youth Offending Team.   
School-based coordinators should work in partnership with their SENCO and TIAG 
advisor to ensure high-quality support and IAG is in place for vulnerable young people 
during their transition to post-16 learning or training. 
 
Post 16, the service targets 16-19 year olds who are Not in Education, Employment or 
Training (NEET), non- participants in learning and those for whom a destination is not 
known or not confirmed.  The service is delivered in a number of settings both 
centrally through the Better Barnsley Shop and in the community through Athersley 
Roundhouse, Royston Library, The Komplex Hoyland, Penistone Library, Wombwell 
and The Dearne IKIC Young People’s Centres. A range of delivery methods are utilised 
as appropriate to engage with young people including visiting them at home if 
necessary. 
 
Benefits of getting involved: Vulnerable young people who are the most at risk of 
becoming disengaged from learning are actively supported to make positive 
progressions into education, employment or training. 
 
For further information please contact Angela Lomax angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk 

  

Page 41

mailto:angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
                

            

 

 

 

IKIC Big Challenge 

Richard Shaw – 01226 773437 

richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk     
IKIC STEM Programme 

Enterprise Adviser Network 

Ambition Barnsley  

Angela Lomax – 01226 772316 

angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk 
CEIAG Network and IAG Quality Award 

Targeted Information Advice 

& Guidance Service (TIAG) 

Work Inspiration Week and Takeover Day 
Jeffrey Townend – 01226 773223 

jeffreytownend@barnsley.gov.uk  

IKIC Website www.ikic.co.uk  

Area Wide Prospectus (AWP) www.ucasprogress.com 

Enterprise Champion 

Alasdair Parker  

01226 774573 

alasdairparker@barnsley.gov.uk  

The Vulnerability Matrix RoNI 

(Risk of NEET Indicator) & Destinations Data 

Tracey Herbert – 01226 774510 

traceyherbert@barnsley.gov.uk 

Targeted Youth Support and IKIC Volunteering 
Julie Hammerton – 01226 753406 

juliehammerton@barnsley.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 42

mailto:richardshaw@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:jeffreytownend@barnsley.gov.uk
http://www.ikic.co.uk/
http://www.ucasprogress.com/
mailto:alasdairparker@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:traceyherbert@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:juliehammerton@barnsley.gov.uk


APPRENTICESHIPS 
An Apprenticeship is a full-time (min. 30 hours p.w) paid work placement to allow people to gain work experience and skills whil e studying for a 
qualification. There are different levels of apprenticeship; Level 2 (Intermediate), Level 3 (Advanced) and Level 4+ (Higher)  with different requirements 
for each eg levels of supervision.  
 
There are also ringfenced Supported Apprenticeships for learners with Educational Needs and/or Disabilities, whereby funding can be provided for in-
work support or reasonable adjustments eg equipment. We also support young people in care or Care Leavers through a number of  ringfenced 
apprenticeships.Individuals can benefit from gaining work experience and insight into a particular area of work or role whils t gaining skills and earning a 
wage. 
 
It can be beneficial for organisations to gain fresh ideas, it contributes to staff development (supervisory / management / m entioring skills), it can form 
a 'grow your own' succession planning strategy as well as an opportunity to develop relationships with local learning provide rs. 

WHICH PATH WILL YOU TAKE? 

Supported Internships are a 1-year study programmes designed to support young people (16-24) with Educational Needs and/or Disabilities into 
employment. They include a substantial work placement with an employer which is unpaid, and may involve role rotations as wel l as relevant, vocational 
training.  
Funding is provided to support the learner with an in-work Job Coach and any reasonable adjustments they may need eg equipment. For learners with 
disabilities this programme offers a route into work with the support they need to reach their potential. The job coach can p rovide: free support and 
advice for both the learner and organisation, a match between the learner and job and disability awareness training.  
 
Organisations can benefit in terms of higher enthusiasm / accuracy / productivity created by the match of learner and role (w hich spreads to the wider 
team) and improved reputation by employing a diverse workforce including people with disabilities.  

SUPPORTED INTERNSHIPS 

This is a type of work placement to employ a graduated university student for 12 months to 2 years and is paid.  
These can commence from May onwards, are full time and should include some form of training, professional development or experience of the world 
of work. Individuals can benefit from gaining work experience and insight into a particular area of work or role whilst gaining skills and earning a wage.  
 
It can be beneficial for organisations where capacity is only required for a period of time (such as for a particular project), to gain fresh ideas, it can 
form a 'grow your own' succession planning strategy as well as an opportunity to develop relationships with local providers and universities. 

GRADUATE INTERNSHIPS 

The Takeover Challenge is a wider initiative of Takeover day (work experience opportunities ringfenced for young people (aged  14-25) who are in care 
or Care Leavers) open to all young people.  
 
It involves hosting several 'Takeover' activities over a number of months which adhere to various standards such as: involvin g senior staff and a high 
profile person, having press/media coverage and building relationships with other organisations (eg schools).  
Young people gain an insight into the the world of work and how council services run, and organisations benefit from a fresh perspective about their 
work.  

TAKEOVER CHALLENGE 

Takeover Day runs in November and is a work experience opportunity ringfenced for young people (aged 14 -25) who are in care or Care Leavers to 
shadow someone and have a decision-making role.  
 
Young people gain an insight into the the world of work and how council services run, and organisations benefit from a fresh perspective about their 
work 

TAKEOVER DAY 

The first Work Inspiration Week will be in March and is a work experience opportunity open to young people. They can gain an insight into the the 
world of work and how council services run, and organisations benefit from a fresh perspective about their work.  
 
Services will plan a day-long placement which can then be replicated 2+ times in that week, allowing for a different indivdiual each day. Young people 
gain an insight into the the world of work and how council services run, and organisations benefit from a fresh perspective a bout their work.  

WORK INSPIRATION WEEK  

Work experience can vary in length and structure, from a ½ day to a few weeks. Individuals can experience the world of work, get a taste of particular 
roles and services and gain experience to add to their CVs.  
 
Organisations can benefit from getting fresh perspectives on their work, developing staff in terms of managing and mentoring a person, building 
relationships with local learning providers and attracting school leavers.  
 
Young people gain an insight into the the world of work and how council services run and organisations benefit from a fresh p erspective about their 
work.  

WORK EXPERIENCE 

Work placements tend to be longer in duration than work experience and may be more structured, eg a summer internship, work o n a particular project. 
These can be paid or unpaid.  
 
Individuals can benefit from gaining work experience and insight into a particular area of work or role whilst perhaps also e arning a wage.  
 
It can be beneficial for organisations where capacity is only required for a period of time, such as for a particular project , and they can also benefit from 
fresh ideas.   

WORK PLACEMENTS 

This is a type of work placement to employ a university student full-time, usually for a 12 month fixed contract, during their Sandwich Year degree (after 
they have completed year 2).  
 
These can begin between May and September and usually involve work on a particular project. Undergraduate placements are generally paid.Individuals 
can benefit from gaining work experience and insight into a particular area of work or role whilst gaining skills and earning a wage.  
 
It can be beneficial for organisations where capacity is only required for a period of time (such as for a particular project), to gain fresh ideas, it can form 
a 'grow your own' succession planning strategy as well as an opportunity to develop relationships with local providers and universities. 

WORK INSPIRATION WEEK 

A Traineeship forms part of a study programme and is an unpaid work placement designed for young people (16-24) who want to get an apprenticeship 
or job but don’t yet have appropriate skills or experience. Work experience placements can last between 100 hours and 240 hours.  
Individuals can benefit from gaining the work experience and skills they need to move onto an apprenticeship or job. It provides time for young people 
who are new to the world of work to adjust to it and gain insight into a particular area of work before progressing.  
 
It can be beneficial for organisations to gain fresh ideas, contribute to staff development (supervisory / management / mentioring skills) and it can form 
a 'grow your own' succession planning strategy as well as an opportunity to develop relationships with local learning providers. 

TRAINEESHIPS 

WORK PLACEMENT 

UNLOCK YOUR POTENTIAL 

VEIW ALL OUR OPPOTUNITIES 

100'S OF OPPOTUNITIES 

Page 43

http://ikic.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

Barnsley
Raising 

Participation 
Strategy

2017-2020

Page 45



2 | P a g e

Contents Page

Executive Summary 3

Raising Participation Development Plan 5

Raising Participation Operational Plan 11

Appendix I: Statutory Duties 14

Appendix II: Performance Analysis 17

Appendix III: Related Socio-economic and Educational Considerations 25

Appendix IV: Consultation Summary 30

Appendix V: Participation Panel Terms of Reference 31

Appendix VI: Post 16 Partnership Board Terms of Remit 33

Appendix VII: The Young People’s Skills and Enterprise Team 36

Page 46



3 | P a g e

Executive Summary

The Raising Participation Strategy 2017-2020 sets out how Barnsley will fulfil its statutory duties to ensure that all 
young people aged 16 and 17 participate in learning.

The strategy complements the borough’s vision of 

‘working together for a brighter future, a better Barnsley’

and will help us achieve the borough’s three priorities:

 A thriving and vibrant economy
 People achieving their potential
 Strong and resilient communities

It also takes into account the following plans:

 BMBC Corporate Plan
 Employment and Skills Strategy: More and Better Jobs
 Jobs and Business Plan 2014-17
 Children and Young People’s Plan 2016-19
 Improving Education Strategy 2016-2018

In 2008, the government passed legislation through the Education and Skills Act to raise the age of participation in 
education and training. The law now requires all young people in England to continue in education or training until 
at least their 18th birthday. In practice the vast majority of young people continue until the end of the academic 
year in which they turn 18. 

Barnsley’s Raising Participation Strategy 2014-2016 has resulted in significant improvements.

In May 2013 Barnsley’s participation percentage was 90.4%.

By June 2016 it had increased to 92.4% and means that more young people than ever before are participating in 
learning and therefore gaining more qualifications, improving their skills and having a positive impact on the 
economy.

Despite this good performance, analysis shows that there are still small but significant groups of young people who 
are not participating in learning:

1. Young people who are Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET).

Although the numbers of young people who are Not in Education, Employment and Training in Barnsley is 
below Yorkshire and Humber and England averages, there are a number of key issues that need to be 
addressed if we are to support this group to participate in learning:

 The number of young people who are NEET increases over Y12
 As they enter Y13, those who are NEET are more difficult to re-engage and support back into education, 

employment or training (EET)
 There are between 33% and 45% of young people who are NEET and not available to the labour market 

because they are pregnant, a teenage parent, a young carer or ill
 Young people who are NEET present multiple and complex barriers to participation

Page 47



4 | P a g e

2.  Young People who are Not Known 

These are young people who are known to us but for whom we don’t have an up to date, current 
destination status because:

 They cannot be contacted
 Their education, employment or training destination currency has expired
 They are pending because their new destination is yet to be established

The data shows that although Barnsley follows regional and national annual trends, from its peak in 
September, the reduction of Not Knowns is slower when compared to Yorkshire and Humber and England 
performance.

3. Young People who have Left learning

These are young people who initially participate in learning but then leave provision early before their 
completion date. Although many of them do eventually re-participate, there is still a significant proportion 
who do not.

4. Young People in Jobs Without Training (JWT)

Although data analysis shows that there are very few young people in the group, numbers remain static. In 
addition, three of the top five occupations in which this group is employed are identified as sectors in which 
Barnsley has a competitive advantage – manufacturing, construction and logistics.

If we are to achieve our aspiration for all young people to participate in learning, our future strategy needs to 
properly understand ‘who’ these young people are and ‘why’ they aren’t participating. This needs to be understood 
in the context of the wider education and socio-economic landscape in Barnsley to better identify the support, 
provision and approaches needed to overcome barriers to participation. Specifically, we need to consider:

 How we improve educational attainment to support progression into higher learning? (Education)
 How we raise aspirations for all young people? (Social)
 How we ensure that young people, their families and those who influence them are aware of the changing 

labour market and economic requirements? (Economic)

To achieve this Barnsley’s Raising Participation Strategy identifies three development priorities set out in the Raising 
Participation Development Plan below.

Implementing these developments will allow the partnership across the borough to adopt the revised Raising 
Participation Operational Plan that is required to address the needs of those who currently remain distanced from 
education, employment or training post 16.

Page 48



5 | P a g e

BARNSLEY RAISING PARTICIPATION DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Priority 1: Improve data sharing across the partnership

Goal Actions to deliver Responsibility Outcomes Timeframe
Analyse pre-16 drop-out intelligence and cross reference against 
the Risk of NEET Indicator

Establish a post-16 Risk of NEET indicator across all post-16 
providers

Improve the early identification of 
young people at risk of dropping out 
from EET

Workforce development to improve risk of NEET identification

Data Officer

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Post-16 Providers

Post-16 Risk of 
NEET Indicator 
agreed and used 
across all providers

Completed by 
September 2017

Collate and agree cohort and destination details School 
census/provider 
occupancy 
information 
received and 
updated on CCIS

Monthly

Revise data sharing agreements Data sharing 
agreements with all 
providers are 
signed by March 
2017

Reviewed annually

Agree data sharing data set based on current best practice 
examples which includes starter, leaver and retention information

Data exchange 
takes place

Monthly

Identify vulnerable learners via RONI and put in place mechanisms 
to track and monitor their progress to ensure their sustained 
participation

Improve the quality and accuracy of 
destination data to support 
evidence based planning and 
decision making

Implement new NEET Categories to better identify provision 
needs/gaps

Data Officer

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

NEET Categories are 
operational through 
CCIS by March 2017

All NEET Categories 
converted by April 
2017

P
age 49



6 | P a g e

Improve understanding of the 
barriers to effective participation

Based on those groups who are not currently participating, 
undertake a number of research projects to interrogate and 
analyse the reasons for non-participation
Use findings to review RONI categories to ensure its continued 
robustness

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Data Officer

With support from 
Post-16 Provider 
Group

Research findings 
are disseminated 
and used to inform 
planning and 
commissioning of 
future provision

Completed by 
September 2017

Establish participation summits with individual providers to analyse 
current performance, trends and outcomes

Set up robust processes to check 
and challenge data 

At LA level, set up monthly data meetings to analyse performance, 
establish trends and benchmark against national, regional and 
statistical neighbours

Young People’s 
Skills and Enterprise 
Strategy and 
Service Manager

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Data Officer

Improved 
participation

Timetable 
completed by July 
2017

Share data across the partnership to 
support better understanding of 
local, regional, national and 
statistical neighbours’ performance 
and trends

Have a regular data input at the Post-16 Provider meetings Post-16 Partnership 
Board

Data shared and 
used to inform 
future planning

Quarterly

P
age 50



7 | P a g e

Priority 2: Supporting Transitions 

Goal Actions to deliver Responsibility Outcomes Timeframe
Produce a provision map detailing current pathways and progression routes, 
highlighting those driving future growth, jobs and success

Provision mapped 
and recognised

Work with EET providers to address gaps in provision by using intelligence to shape 
their provision that offers incremental engagement and progression to mainstream 
and to develop ‘break-out’ and/or ‘extension’ provision to prevent early drop-out

Increased retention 
in provision

By September 2017

Share provision map with all providers to support transition between providers Gaps in provision 
addressesImprove workforce understanding of the opportunities available to engage, retain 

and progress young people via the IKIC Website/AWP/Barnsley Local Offer

Improve provision and range of re-engagement programmes to support year-long 
opportunities

Ensure Barnsley 
has a diverse, 
flexible and high 
quality education 
and training offer 
that meets and 
supports the needs 
of all young people 
and the labour 
market and 
secures sustainable 
progression into 
EET

Broker placements that meet the specific needs of an individual

Training and Skills 
Service Manager

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Workforce have a 
better 
understanding of 
provision

Ongoing to meet 
needs

Support young 
people at key 
transition points to 
ensure they 
continue to 
participate in 
learning

Explore the use of summer schools to support transition from Y11 into Y12 and from 
Y12 in Y13: research existing local, regional and national models and implement best 
practice

Programme of 
summer schools 
and activities 
implemented

July 2017

Support the September Guarantee Offer through effective follow-up to maximise 
offer:start ratio

Utilise existing Participation and Progression Fairs and expand to include virtual 
fairs: promote via social media

Post-16 Partnership

Training and Skills 
Service Manager

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Data Officer

Increased ratio of 
offer:start from 
2016 benchmark

October 2017

P
age 51



8 | P a g e

Develop the 
managed moves 
protocol to 
support retention 
and participation

Set up a steering group to review the existing managed moves protocol and explore 
ways to ensure its principles are adopted by the partnership

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Data Officer

New managed 
moves protocol 
agreed and 
implemented

By October 2017

Set up 
Participation 
Panels as a means 
of discussing 
suitable pathways 
and provision 
opportunities for 
difficult to place 
young people

Develop a Participation Panel  for young people who are NEET; at risk of dropping 
out of EET provision; Not Knowns and complex cases

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Reps from learning 
providers

Targeted 
Information Advice 
and Guidance 
Service Manager

Increase in 
participation

Monthly from 
February 2017

Map existing specialist interventions available for 13-25 year olds Improve access to 
specialist 
interventions to 
remove barriers to 
participation

Create a brochure of specialist interventions to raise awareness of the support 
available

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Young People’s 
Skills and Enterprise 
Strategy and 
Service Manager

Increased access to 
specialist services 
for those in need

Resources 
maximised through 
traded services

From September 
2017

P
age 52



9 | P a g e

Priority 3: Raise Aspirations and Provide Effective Advice and Guidance

Goal Action to deliver Responsibility Outcomes Timeframe
Use the Peer Review Process to ensure schools are delivering 
aspirational IAG that meets the Gatsby Benchmarks, Ofsted 
Outcomes and they are working towards recognised national 
career quality benchmarks
Explore ways to extend the Peer Review process to post-16 
providers with an emphasis on CEIAG
Work with the CEIAG Network to promote best practice
Work with the SCR to produce and promote a Barnsley CEIAG Offer

Create a culture of high aspiration 
and ambition

Deliver the IKIC Offer and maximise the Enterprise Adviser 
Network to promote aspiration

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Young People’s 
Skills and Enterprise 
Strategy and 
Service Manager

More schools have 
the quality award: 
from a benchmark 
of current quality 
award holders

Ongoing

Support learning providers to help them understand and meet 
their statutory duties in relation to IAG

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

All learning 
providers are 
compliant with 
their statutory 
duties

By July 2017

Review IKIC Offer and map against Gatsby benchmarks IKIC Offer is 
distributed

By January 2017

Further develop the IKIC website

Young People’s 
Skills and Enterprise 
Strategy and 
Service Manager

IKIC Website is 
launched

By March 2017

Ensure ALL young people have 
access to independent and impartial 
IAG to help them make informed 
choices about their future

Plan and deliver annual Ambition Barnsley careers event Ambition Barnsley 
Team

Feedback is 90% 
positive

Annually in October

Work with Fire Service/The Prince’s Trust and other providers to 
explore mechanisms to provide parents/carers with accessible IAG 
and information about the benefits of participation

Identify ‘hard to reach’ parents and communities e.g. of young 
people who are Elective Home Educated; Educated Other Than at 
School; Looked After Children/Children in Care and Travellers and 
explore a multi-agency approach to engage, inform and support

Set up and pilot a parent 
ambassadors model to provide IAG 
for parents and carers

Provide information to parents to support participation and 
progression

Raising 
Participation 
Service Manager

Post-16 providers

Ambassadors model 
is piloted

By September 2017

P
age 53



10 | P a g e

Undertake a data cleansing exercise to identify young people, their 
employer and their occupational sector

Cross reference against the provision and pathways map

Data Officer List of young people 
identified

By May 2017Ensure that those young people in 
jobs without training are actively 
encouraged to take up learning 
opportunities

Use Post-16 Partnership Board to identify suitable provision and 
identified key worker

Partnership Board Fewer young 
people are in jobs 
without training NB 
Need to benchmark

By July 2017

Use intelligence gathered to inform service design and 
commissioning

Listen to young people and use their 
feedback to make improvements

Devise a process of voice, influence and change

Partnership Board Improved 
satisfaction levels in 
services across the 
partnership

By December 2017

P
age 54



11 | P a g e

BARNSLEY RAISING PARTICIPATION OPERATIONAL PLAN

1. Monthly Operations

Schools/Providers Other services/agencies YPSE TIAG
 Supply list of active students
 Supply starters, leavers & 

completers list

 TIAG drop in session @ Future 
Directions

 ETE Panel

 Provider starter, leaver & 
completers lists shared with TIAG 
team manager

 ETE Panel

 Collate information for ETE panel
 Starters and leavers shared and 

prioritised
 TIAG drop in session @ Future 

Directions
 ETE Panel

Early 
each 

month
 Update IO (Client Caseload 

Information Service)
 Distribute PA caseload report
 Submit DfE return

 Prioritise NEET caseload

Mid 
month  TIAG drop in session @ Future 

Directions

 Complete monthly data analysis
 Monthly Data Review Meeting
 Agree list of NEETs for 

Participation Panel

 Care leaver ‘drop in’ session
 Not Known follow up added to 

work plans
 TIAG drop in session @ Future 

Directions

 Prepare list concerns/'likely 
leavers'

 for Participation Panel

 Prepare referrals for Participation 
Panel

Last 
week of 

the 
month

 Participation Panel
 Follow up actions arising from 

Participation Panel

 Up to date LAC/care leaver list 
distributed ahead of ETE Panel

 Up to date YOT list submitted?
 Up to date SEND list submitted?

 Participation Panel  Follow up actions arising from 
Participation Panel

Key Documents
 Data sharing agreement
 Provider ILR and BMBC monthly data return
 PA caseload report
 Monthly Data Analysis

 Quarterly Vulnerable Groups Analysis (Apr; Jul; Oct; Jan only)
 Participation Panel referrals and minutes
 LAC/care leaver lists
 YOT & SEND cohort lists

P
age 55



12 | P a g e

2. Annual Operations

Schools/Providers Other services/agencies YPSE TIAG
Sept  Submit offers for September 

Guarantee
 Submit weekly data returns

 Collate September Guarantee 
returns

 Finalise borough’s September 
guarantee offer

 Young People with no Sept 
Guarantee offer to be discussed at 
Sept Participation Panel

Oct  Submit weekly data returns

 Liaise with providers regarding the 
EFA Place change notification 
process

 Finance agree DSG E3 budget for 
post 16 HNB learners

 Liaise with RABIT team to obtain 
up to date school census 
information

 Produce Needs Analysis summary 
current and future (next 2 years) 
provision requirements

 Clarify DSG E3 budget for post 16 
High Needs Budget learners

 Liaise with providers regarding the 
EFA Place change notification 
process

 Liaise with SEND team to clarify 
SEND cohort and profile of 
primary need

 Liaise with Virtual School and 
Future Directions to clarify 
Looked After Childrean & care 
leavers cohorts and needs

Nov  Submit monthly data returns   Finalise activity survey returns
 Transition of all ‘year 11 transition’ 

learners to PAs’ caseloads
 Finalise post 16 E3 funding 

reconciliation
 Complete EFA Place change 

notification process
Dec  Submit monthly data returns

 Share Needs Analysis with 
providers at the Partnership 
meeting

 Up date the provision map at the 


 Share Needs Analysis with 

providers at the Partnership 
meeting

 Up date the provision map at the 
Partnership meeting

P
age 56



13 | P a g e

Partnership meeting
Jan  Plan and develop appropriate 

provision in response to Needs 
Analysis

 SLT use Activity Survey Data Pack 
to evaluate school NEET 
performance

 Publication of National Activity 
Survey data

 Finalise Activity Survey Data Pack 
by adding national and regional 
comparators

 Share Activity Survey Data Pack 
with SLT in schools

Feb  Finalise post 16 E3 funding 
reconciliation

 Activity Survey Data Pack shared 
with schools at CEIAG Network 
meeting

Mar  Liaise with Virtual School and 
Future Directions to clarify LAC & 
care leavers cohorts and needs

Apr  Evaluate breadth of provision in 
response to the needs of LAC/care 
leavers

  Share range of LAC/care leavers 
aspirations at Partnership meeting 
to support curriculum planning & 
recruitment

May  Plan and develop appropriate 
provision in response to needs of 
LAC/care leavers

  Plan the allocation of, and recruit 
to, the ring fenced corporate 
apprenticeships in response to 
need from LAC & care leavers

Jun  Finalise post 16 E3 funding 
reconciliation

Jul Confirm offer of September 
Guarantee

Aug

Key Documents:
 School/provider weekly/monthly data returns
 September Guarantee Report
 EFA Place change notification documentation
 Needs Analysis

 Partnership minutes
 Provision map
 Activity Survey Data Pack
 E3 Funding reconciliation Reports

P
age 57



14 | P a g e

APPENDIX I: Raising Participation Statutory Duties

What is Raising Participation?

RPA does not mean staying in school: young people have a choice about how they continue in education or training 
post-16. The three primary ways for a young person to participate are: 

 full-time study in a school, college or with a training provider; 

 full-time work or volunteering (20 hours or more) combined with part-time education or training leading to 
relevant, regulated qualifications; or 

 an apprenticeship; traineeship or supported internship

Although the majority of young people already continue in education or training, there is still a proportion that do 
not. The rationale of the legislation is to encourage ALL young people to study and train to gain the skills needed for 
the changing labour market and to ensure everyone fulfils their potential.

Duties on Local Authorities

Local Authorities have a critical role to play and have broad duties to encourage, enable and assist young people to 
participate in education or training.  Specifically these are: 

 To secure sufficient suitable education and training provision for all young people in their area who are over 
compulsory school age but under 19 or aged 19 to 25 and for whom an Education, Health and Care (EHC) 
plan is maintained. This is a duty under the education act 1996. To fulfil this, local authorities need to have a 
strategic overview of the provision available in their area and to identify and resolve gaps in provision.

 To make available to all young people aged 13-19 and to those between 20 and 25 with special educational 
needs and disabilities (SEND), support that will encourage, enable or assist them to participate in education 
or training under Section 68 of Education and Skills Act 2008. 

Tracking young people’s participation is a key element of these duties. Local authorities are required to collect 
information about young people so that those who are not participating, or are NEET, can be identified and given 
support to re-engage. Robust tracking also provides the local authority with information that will help to ensure that 
suitable education and training provision is available and that resources can be targeted effectively. 

In addition, the Education and Skills Act 2008 placed two RPA-related duties on local authorities with regard to 16 
and 17 year olds: 

 Local authorities must promote the effective participation in education and training of 16 and 17 year olds in 
their area with a view to ensuring that those persons fulfil the duty to participate in education or training. A 
key element of this is identifying the young people in their area who are covered by the duty to participate 
and encouraging them to find a suitable education or training place. 

 Local authorities must make arrangements – i.e. maintain a tracking system - to identify 16 and 17 year olds 
who are not participating in education or training. Putting in place robust arrangements to identify young 
people who are not engaged in education or training or who have left provision enables local authorities to 
offer support as soon as possible. 

In order to discharge these duties, local authorities are required to identify young people not participating so that 
they can ensure that these young people get the support they need. The information collected must be in the 
format specified by the National Client Caseload Information System (CCIS) Management Information requirement.  

Page 58



15 | P a g e

In a change from the previous requirement, local authorities are now required to collect and record information 
about young people up to and including academic age 17 - and up to age 25 for those with an EHC plan. Local 
authorities should make sure they are using information they have about children and young people with 
statements of SEN and with EHC plans to keep track of their participation. To meet this requirement, local 
authorities need to have arrangements in place to confirm the current activity of these young people at regular 
intervals. This may be through the exchange of information with education and training providers, and other 
services within the local authority area such as health (including mental health services), youth offending teams and 
Jobcentre Plus, as well as through direct contact with young people. Local authorities are required to put 
arrangements in place to identify those 18-year-olds who are NEET or at risk of becoming NEET and provide them 
with support, but they are not required to track all 18-year-olds or return data about this cohort to the department. 

Local authorities are expected to act on any information they receive about a young person who has dropped out; 
contacting them at the earliest opportunity and supporting them to find an alternative place in education, training 
or employment with training that leads to relevant regulated qualifications. 

Local authorities are expected to work with schools to identify pupils under the age of 16 who are in need of 
targeted support or who are at risk of not participating post-16. They will need to agree how these young people can 
be referred for intensive support, drawn from the range of education and training support services available locally. 
For example, this may include engagement programmes and mental health services. Local authorities should pay 
particular attention to pupils not in mainstream education (such as those not on school rolls), those attending FE 
colleges or alternative provision, those in the care system, and those in youth custody. Tools such as the Risk of 
NEET Indicator (RONI) may support this.

Local authorities should also pay particular attention to children and young people with SEND, who are significantly 
less likely to participate than their peers without SEND, and provide targeted support where needed to enable them 
to participate. Where children and young people have an EHC plan, local authorities have a duty to ensure that the 
annual review of the EHC plan from Year 9 onwards includes a focus on preparing for adult life, including 
employment. This review should be focused on the child or young person’s needs and aspirations, and include 
discussion about the next steps after school, and a pathway into further or higher education or employment. 
Statements of SEN must also be reviewed annually and there must be consideration of the move into post-16 
education and beyond. The responsibilities placed on young people by RPA should also be built clearly into these 
reviews and discussions. 

Local authorities are expected to lead the September Guarantee process, which underpins the delivery of this duty. 
This is the process by which local authorities aim to ensure that all 16-17 year olds receive an offer of a suitable 
place in education or training by the end of September each year. 

The participation of young people in education and training should be actively supported through local authorities’ 
wider functions wherever possible and practical. Specific examples of this are: 

 When developing transport arrangements and preparing their post-16 transport policy statement, local 
authorities should ensure young people are not prevented from participating because of the cost or 
availability of transport to their education or training. 

 Where possible, ensuring a focus on participation is embedded throughout their education and children’s 
services, Youth Offending Teams, Priority Families Teams and pre-16 Education Teams, social services and 
economic development, amongst others. 

 Local authorities, schools and colleges will need to set out what services they provide for young people with 
SEN in the area – the ‘local offer’ – up to the age of 25. The local offer will be a key tool in supporting young 
people with SEN and disabilities to make choices as they approach the end of school. 

 Local authorities should provide strategic leadership in their areas, working with and influencing partners 
locally to support participation. 

Page 59



16 | P a g e

Duties on young people 

Young people have duties too.

Under Part 1 of the Education and Skills Act 2008 young people aged 16 and 17, who have not attained level 3 
qualifications of sufficient size, are under a duty to continue in education or training until the young person’s 18th 
birthday. The statutory duty does not extend until the end of the academic year in which the young person turns 18. 
Young people should however be encouraged to complete the education or training they are undertaking beyond 
their 18th birthday. 

The aim is to ensure that every young person continues their studies or takes up training and goes on to successful 
employment or higher education. 

Duties on Schools

From September 2012, schools have been under a duty to secure access to independent and impartial careers 
guidance for their pupils in years 9-11 on the full range of post-16 options, including Apprenticeships. Academies 
and Free Schools opening from September 2012 are subject to an equivalent requirement in their funding 
agreements. 

From September 2013, the careers duty will be extended to years 8-13 and an equivalent requirement will be 
applied to 16-18 year olds in colleges through funding agreements. Schools are expected to engage, as appropriate, 
in partnership with external, expert careers providers but are otherwise free to make arrangements that fit the 
needs and circumstances of their students. In fulfilling their new duty, schools should secure access to independent 
face-to-face careers guidance where it is the most suitable support for young people to make successful transitions, 
particularly children from disadvantaged backgrounds or those who have special educational needs, learning 
difficulties or disabilities

Duties on Sixth Forms, Colleges and other Training Providers

Providers of education or training for 16 and 17 year olds will be under two duties in relation to RPA. They must: 

 Promote good attendance of 16 and 17 year olds and 

 Inform local authority support services if a young person (aged 16 or 17) has dropped out of learning. This 
is so the young person can be contacted swiftly and offered support to help them re-engage.

Page 60



17 | P a g e

APPENDIX II: Analysis of Recent Performance

Current Participation Performance

Analysis of the data shows that the partnership and Raising Participation Strategy 2014-2016 has worked hard to 
improve participation in learning from 90.4% in May 2013 to 92.4% in June 2016 which equates to a full 2% increase. 
Barnsley’s participation performance is good and, although the graph below shows that performance at local, 
regional, national and statistical neighbour levels fluctuate throughout the year, overall, the trend is one of 
improvement and means that more young people than ever before are participating in learning and therefore 
gaining more qualifications, improving their skills and having a positive impact on the economy.

Fig 1: Participation Trends from 2013

85.0%

86.0%

87.0%

88.0%

89.0%

90.0%

91.0%

92.0%

93.0%

Barnsley

England

Statistical 
neighbours 
average

Yorkshire and 
Humber

Participation Trends

 Mar 13     Jun 13        Dec 13        Mar 14        Jun 14        Dec 14        Mar 15       Jun 15        Dec 15        Mar 16        Jun 16        Dec 16

However, despite this good performance, analysis shows that there are still a small but significant number of young 
people who are not participating in learning. 

If our aspiration is for all young people to participate in learning then strategies to increase participation with these 
young people need to be considered. For this to happen, it is important to identify ‘who’ isn’t participating as 
different strategies may need to be deployed for different groups.

1. Young people who are Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET).

The first group of young people who are not participating in learning are those young people who are Not in 
Education, Employment or Training (NEET).

For the purposes of the Raising Participation Strategy, this includes young people who are in Year 12 and Year 13.

Although Barnsley’s NEET performance for 16 year olds is excellent when compared to Yorkshire and Humber and 
England (see Fig 2 and Fig 3 below), further scrutiny suggests that while very few of those who leave school in 
summer 2015 are initially NEET (0.3% in September 2015 which equates to 6 young people), as the academic year 
progresses, more young people become NEET and by August 2016 the figure is 2.3% which equates to 54 young 
people.

Page 61



18 | P a g e

Fig 2: 16 Year Old NEET 2015/16

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 2.7% 3.6% 3.7% 3.8% 3.9% 0.3% 0.6% 1.2% 1.5% 1.8% 1.8% 1.9%
Y&H 3.2% 3.3% 3.4% 3.9% 5.3% 1.6% 1.9% 2.2% 2.4% 2.5% 2.7% 2.8%
England 2.7% 2.8% 2.9% 3.5% 4.6% 1.5% 1.6% 1.8% 2.0% 2.1% 2.3% 2.4%

16 Year Old NEET 2015/16

Fig 3: 16 Year Old NEET 2016/17

0.0%
0.5%
1.0%
1.5%
2.0%
2.5%
3.0%
3.5%
4.0%
4.5%
5.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 2.0% 2.1% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 0.9% 1.2% 1.8% 1.8% 2.2%
Y&H 2.9% 3.1% 3.2% 3.5% 4.7% 1.2% 1.7% 2.0% 2.2% 2.3%
England 2.5% 2.6% 2.7% 3.0% 3.9% 1.0% 1.5% 1.8% 1.9% 2.0%

16 Year Old NEET 2016/17

Analysis of 17 year old NEET performance (see Fig 4 and 5) suggests that whilst the percentage was slightly above 
Yorkshire and Humber and England for much of the academic year, it does eventually fall below both by the end of 
the academic year and by August 2016, 4.8% of young people in Y13 were NEET which equates to 116 young people. 
Added to the 54 young people who are NEET in Y12, this totals 170 young people who are NEET and not 
participating.

Further analysis of trends across 17 year olds shows that Barnsley’s NEET performance is reasonably static: this 
suggests two hypotheses: 

1) providers are retaining young people in provision 
2) once someone is NEET it is more difficult to support them back into EET.

Page 62



19 | P a g e

Fig 4: 17 Year Old NEET 2015/16

0.0%
1.0%
2.0%
3.0%
4.0%
5.0%
6.0%
7.0%
8.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 5.3% 5.2% 5.3% 5.2% 5.4% 4.5% 4.7% 4.9% 4.8% 5.0% 5.1% 5.0%
Y&H 5.2% 5.1% 5.2% 5.5% 6.9% 5.1% 4.3% 4.4% 4.5% 4.6% 4.7% 4.7%
England 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 5.2% 6.5% 4.8% 3.9% 3.8% 3.9% 3.9% 3.9% 4.0%

17 Year Old NEET 2015/16

Fig 5: 17 Year Old NEET 2016/17

0.0%
1.0%
2.0%
3.0%
4.0%
5.0%
6.0%
7.0%
8.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 4.8% 4.9% 4.8% 5.0% 4.8% 2.3% 2.4% 2.8% 2.9% 3.1%
Y&H 4.7% 4.7% 4.6% 4.9% 6.8% 3.4% 3.7% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
England 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.3% 5.1% 3.0% 3.2% 3.4% 3.5% 3.5%

17 Year Old NEET 2016/17

Another important dimension to consider when looking at the NEET cohort is that there are two distinct NEET 
categories:

1. Those young people who are NEET and available to the labour market
2. Those young people who are taking a temporary break from the labour market i.e. they are NEET and 

unavailable to the labour market.

This latter group comprises young people who are:

 Pregnant
 A teenage parent
 A young carer

Page 63



20 | P a g e

 Ill

As such, strategies to increase participation for this group of young people needs to take into account their personal 
circumstances and provision needs to be commissioned to meet their specific needs.

Fig 6: NEET Available and Unavailable 2015/16

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
NEET Available 297 301 300 285 283 143 160 172 186 189 187 186
NEET 
Unavailable

133 133 135 142 148 76 92 100 103 104 110 113

NEET Trends by numbers 2015/16

Fig 7: NEET Available and Unavailable 2016/17

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
NEET Available 177 182 181 176 167 117 127 149 155 167
NEET Unavailable 115 120 129 131 137 74 76 79 80 85

NEET Trends by numbers 2016/17

Finally, it is important to understand ‘who’ these NEET young people are and recognise that they are individuals who 
require individual approaches. Research undertaken by the TIAG Service identified a number of key ‘NEET’ 
characteristics including:

 No/low attainment
 Low confidence
 Mental health issues
 Hidden homelessness
 Poor attendance in pre-16 learning
 Learning difficulties
 Unrealistic expectations

Page 64



21 | P a g e

 No/low work experience

The research also identified that many of those young people who experience NEET also experience a number of 
these characteristics.
In summary then:

 The number of young people who are NEET increases throughout Y12
 As they enter Y13, those who are NEET are more difficult to re-engage and support back into EET
 There are between 33% and 45% of young people who are NEET and not available to the labour market 

because they are pregnant, a teenage parent, a young carer or ill
 There are a number of NEET characteristics which young people experience and present as barriers to 

participation

To remedy this, the RPS Partnership must recognise and understand these issues and commission a mix and balance 
of provision that presents young people with a range of start points, pathways and support.

2.  Young People who are Not Known

The second group of young people who are not participating are those who are ‘Not Known’. 

Firstly, it is important to state that the Not Knowns are known in terms of ‘who’ they are. They are ‘Not Known’ 
because their current destination is ‘Not Known’.

Secondly, it is important to understand that there are three ‘types’ of Not Knowns:

 Those who cannot be contacted because there are no up to date address or telephone numbers
 Those whose destination has lapsed from education, employment or training i.e. the currency of their 

current destination has expired
 Those who are pending i.e. it is known they have left their recorded destination but their new destination is 

yet to be established

Analysis of young people who are 16 years old and not known (see Fig 8) shows a spike up to 10.7% in September 
2015 reflecting annual trends during the transition period from leaving school into Year 12 but then shows a steady 
reduction in this figure throughout the rest of the academic year and resulting in 1.5% Not Known in August 2016 
(see Fig 9) which equates to 37 young people.

Further analysis shows that Barnsley is on a par with national and regional performance.

Page 65



22 | P a g e

Fig 8: 16 Year Old Not Known 2015/16

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 1.3% 3.6% 3.7% 3.8% 1.9% 10.7% 6.1% 3.4% 2.2% 1.9% 1.5% 1.8%
Y&H 1.3% 3.3% 3.4% 3.9% 18.5% 20.7% 15.5% 2.9% 1.4% 1.3% 1.3% 1.2%
England 2.3% 2.8% 2.9% 3.5% 21.4% 33.4% 21.1% 3.5% 2.4% 1.8% 1.9% 1.9%

16 Year Old Not Known 2015/16

Fig 9: 16 Year Old Not Known 2016/17

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 1.6% 1.6% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 3.6% 2.1% 1.5% 1.4% 1.1%
Y&H 1.4% 1.5% 1.5% 1.9% 14.9% 17.0% 8.0% 1.9% 1.5% 1.1%
England 2.0% 2.1% 2.0% 2.4% 12.7% 30.0% 10.0% 3.2% 2.4% 1.6%

16 Year Old Not Known 2016/17

For those young people aged 17, 336 or 13.1% were Not Known in September 2015 (see Fig 10). This spike in 
numbers during the transition period from Y12 to Y13 reflects regional and national annual trends. The data shows 
that although Barnsley is well below regional and national performance at this point, the graph trajectory shows 
that the reduction in Not Knowns is somewhat slower when compared to regional and national performance 
resulting in higher Not Knowns for this group until the end of the academic year (August) when this figure had 
reduced to 4.3% or 109 young people by August 2016 (see Fig 11) and was on a par with regional and national 
averages.

Page 66



23 | P a g e

Fig 10: 17 Year Old Not Known 2015/16

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 5.3% 5.2% 5.3% 5.2% 2.8% 13.1% 9.0% 9.2% 8.1% 6.3% 6.4% 5.0%
Y&H 3.6% 5.1% 5.2% 5.5% 18.3% 21.9% 16.2% 5.8% 4.6% 4.0% 3.7% 3.6%
England 5.5% 4.5% 4.5% 5.2% 28.8% 30.1% 23.7% 7.7% 6.1% 4.9% 4.7% 4.7%

17 Year Old Not Known  2015/16

Fig 11: 17 Year Old Not Known 2016/17

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Barnsley 5.4% 5.4% 5.6% 6.0% 4.3% 13.9% 11.6% 10.0% 9.4% 5.6%
Y&H 3.6% 3.8% 3.7% 4.0% 26.3% 14.3% 8.4% 5.4% 4.9% 3.5%
England 4.9% 5.0% 4.7% 5.5% 17.2% 28.2% 13.9% 7.0% 9.6% 4.1%

17 Year Old Not Known 2016/17

Data sharing is critically important for the tracking of this group of young people and ensuring the percentage of 
young people who fall into this group is low. Indeed, providers have a statutory duty to inform the Local Authority of 
any young person aged 16 and 17 who has dropped out of learning and the benefit of early notification means that 
the TIAG Service can swiftly contact them and support them to re-engage.

It is essential that any data sharing process agrees identified data fields and includes contact details, has a clear and 
specific timeline and has an in-built check and challenge.

3. Left learning

Although they are part of the Not Known group, analysis of the data shows there are a distinct group of young 
people who do not make a positive transition into EET from year 12 into year 13 i.e. they participate throughout Y12 
but then fail to continue to do so in Y13.

In 2015, 243 young people who were participating in learning throughout Y12 did not then re-enrol with the same 
provider for Y13.

Page 67



24 | P a g e

Once followed up, of these 243 young people:

 55% re-enrolled with another FE provider
 4.3% entered a non participation destination
 9.3% became NEET
 31.4% became Not Known

What is important is that these young people receive independent and impartial information, advice and guidance 
to consider their options and are given support by their current provider to make a positive transition into other 
education, employment or training options. This means that all providers need to have an understanding about the 
provision available locally and that they put in place robust tracking processes to follow-up their students and 
trainees and actively manage their move to another EET provider.

4. Young People in Jobs without Training (JWT)

The fourth group who are not participating are those young people in Jobs without Training (JWT).

Although data in August 2016 shows that this is only a very small number of young people – 12 in Y12 and 66 in Y13, 
analysis suggests that these numbers change little throughout the year.

In addition, analysis of the occupational sectors suggests that the top 5 occupations for young people in JWT are:

 Warehousing
 Call centre work/telesales
 Retail
 Manufacturing
 Construction

As these chime with the five industries identified by Barnsley’s Jobs and Business Plan as having a competitive 
advantage – advanced manufacturing; construction; visitor economy; logistics and business services – it should be 
relatively easy to offer these young people and the employers they work for relevant training that not only up-skills 
the young person but also supports the generation of growth in these industries.

Barnsley has achieved much. The percentage of young people aged 16 and 17 who are NEET is the lowest it has 
been and compares favourably to regional, national and statistical neighbour data. As a result, more young people 
are participating in learning and therefore gaining the skills and knowledge needed to succeed in the future world of 
work. However, without considering the four groups described above who are not participating, Barnsley will not 
meet its aspiration to ensure ALL young people participate in learning.

Page 68



25 | P a g e

APPENDIX III: Related Socio-economic and Educational Factors

There is a broad consensus that social mobility is a major issue for the United Kingdom not only in terms of ensuring 
long-term economic prosperity but also by creating a more just and equal society. Whilst education clearly has a big 
role to play in driving this agenda, there must also be a recognition of the social and economic factors that also 
contribute.

The key challenges which impact and the raising Participation Strategy must consider are:

 How do we improve educational attainment to support progression into higher learning? (Education)
 How do we raise aspirations for all young people? (Social)
 How do we ensure that young people, their families and those who influence them are aware of the 

changing labour market and economic requirements? (Economic)

Educational Challenges

Given education has an important bearing on social mobility given its role in preparing young people with the 
knowledge and skills they need to secure successful futures as workers and citizens and also equips them with the 
qualifications to access the changing world of work, improvements locally and nationally need to be made. 

According to the Barnsley Alliance: Improving Education Strategy 2016-18, success in education and engagement in 
lifelong learning is the key to good employment prospects, good health and well-being, and to building thriving 
communities. Figure 12 below details GCSE attainment between 2013 and 2016 for Barnsley and comparisons to 
Yorkshire and Humber and England averages.

Fig 12: The % of children in Barnsley achieving 5 or more A*-C grades including English and Maths at Key stage 4 in 
2013-2016

2013 2014 2015 2016
Barnsley 50.3% 47.1% 49.5% 55.2%
Yorkshire & Humber 59.5% 53.9% 55.1% 55.7%
England 59.2% 53.4% 53.8% 53.5%

Although improvements can be seen for 2016, the legacy of poor performance and low aspiration remains as 
demonstrated in the table below:

Fig 13: The % of Qualification Levels the 16-64 Resident Population Has (Nomis: Jan 2015-Dec 2015)

Barnsley % Yorkshire & Humber % Great Britain %
NVQ4 And Above 22.8 30.6 37.1
NVQ3 And Above 43.4 51.3 55.8
NVQ2 And Above 66.8 70.1 73.6
NVQ1 And Above 82.2 83.1 84.9
Other Qualifications 6.8 7.2 6.5
No Qualifications 11.0 9.8 8.6

Fewer people in Barnsley have higher level qualifications when compared to regional and national data and only 
25% of young people in Barnsley, according to DfE statistics for 2013/14, are going to university compared to 34% 
for Yorkshire and Humber and 37% for England averages.  If education is the driver for social mobility, high 
aspiration and a thriving labour market, then improvement is much needed.

Page 69



26 | P a g e

Careers guidance has a role to play but without good qualifications, options and aspirations are limited. According to 
Gatsby (2014):

‘Career guidance is important to social mobility. If young people and their families know more about the rich range 
of careers open to people with the right qualifications, they will have a clearer idea of the routes to better jobs’.

However, four years after the policy change to devolve the delivery of careers guidance to schools, the provision of 
careers support for young people in England is patchy and the quality entirely dependent on which particular school 
a young person attends.

Although the government has already introduced several developments to address the problem, namely changes to 
the Ofsted Framework, the publication of the Gatsby benchmarks of good practice, the quality awards which are 
nationally validated by the Quality in Careers Standard (QUICS) and the Teach First pilot programme of continuing 
professional development (CPD) for careers leaders in schools, careers guidance in Barnsley too remains patchy:

 Only three schools have a QUICs accredited quality award
 Five of our schools have an Ofsted rating of ‘Requires Improvement’ and one is in ‘Special Measures’

As a local authority, we have a duty to ‘encourage, enable and assist’ young people to participate in learning. One of 
the strategies we have deployed in the Young People’s Skills and Enterprise Team is the I Know I Can initiative. This 
initiative believes in:

 building confidence 
 creating dreams and aspirations 
 raising qualification levels 
 strengthening life skills 
 using help and support 
 taking ownership and developing a real “I Know I Can attitude” 

The I Know I Can Offer seeks to deliver a number of work streams, activities and initiatives to support schools in 
their delivery of careers guidance and ensure young people are supported to have high aspirations, achieve good 
qualifications and participate in learning post-16.

Social Challenges

Academic research concurs that poverty, as defined by lack of income or resources, prevents people from taking 
part in the society they live in. This often results in them experiencing multiple disadvantages through 
unemployment, low income, poor housing, inadequate health care and barriers to lifelong learning, culture, sport 
and recreation. Often people who live in poverty are excluded and marginalised from participating in activities that 
are the accepted norm for others in their home area, and their access to fundamental rights may be restricted.

Fig 14: Workless Households (Nomis: Jan-Dec 2015)

Barnsley Yorkshire & 
Humber

Great Britain

Number of Workless Households 16,600 290,700 3,081,900
Percentage of Workless Households 20.5% 16.6% 15.3%

Given the above average percentage of workless households in Barnsley in Fig 14 compared with Yorkshire and 
Humber and Great Britain averages and the comparative percentages of benefit claimants in Fig 15, poverty in 
Barnsley has to be addressed in order to improve equality of opportunity and social mobility.

Page 70



27 | P a g e

Fig 15: Working-age client group - main benefit claimants (Nomis: May 2016)

Barnsley
(%)

Yorkshire And
The Humber
(%)

Great Britain
(%)

Job Seekers 1.7 1.8 1.3
ESA And Incapacity Benefits 9.1 6.7 6.2
Lone Parents 1.4 1.2 1.0
Carers 2.7 2.0 1.7
Others On Income Related Benefits 0.3 0.3 0.2
Disabled 1.4 1.0 0.9
Bereaved 0.2 0.2 0.2

According to the Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015, Barnsley is ranked 39th most deprived out of the 326 
local authorities, a decline from IMD 2010 when it was the 47th most deprived area. Comparative to the other local 
authorities in South Yorkshire, Barnsley is the most deprived.

Of particular relevance to the Raising Participation Strategy, is an analysis of two of the seven domains of 
deprivation: employment deprivations and education, skills and training.

Based on the IMD (2015),

 Barnsley is ranked 18th most deprived for employment deprivations
 Barnsley is ranked 10th most deprived for education, skills and training

This presents a real challenge for the borough and it is clear that the Raising Participation Strategy alone cannot 
rectify the issue: a systematic and pan-Barnsley approach is required.

To support young people into education, employment and training, the Targeted Information, Advice and Guidance 
(TIAG) Service already has a statutory remit to work with the most disadvantaged young people in the borough:

 Young people aged 16-18 who are Not in Education, Employment or Training
 Young people aged 13-21 who are Children in Care or Care Leavers
 Young people aged 13-18 who are working with Youth Offending Service
 Young people aged 13-24 who have special educational needs and have an Education, Health and Care Plan

Each of these young people has a named TIAG Personal Adviser whose role is to deliver independent and impartial 
careers information, advice and guidance to raise aspirations, support their progression into education, employment 
and training and equip them with the skills to navigate future transitions. Working in partnership with a range of 
BMBC services and other stakeholders; influencing provision and mirroring a community and family guidance 
approach to delivery, success is reflected in the low numbers of young people who are NEET. Working in 
communities and in people’s homes presents a real opportunity to support and influence not only young people but 
their parents and carers too.

Economic Challenges

Barnsley’s traditional economy for much of the 20th Century was coal and this shaped its infrastructure, landscape 
and communities. Like other areas dependent on one major industry, Barnsley communities felt a lesser need to 
achieve formal educational qualifications because jobs, apprenticeships and lifelong employment were readily 
available. The demise of the industry took these certainties away and economic recovery has taken a long time to 
rebuild. Although there has been significant investment, it took until 2005/2006 for the overall employment levels in 
the town to recover to those of the 1970’s and with it the shift from heavy industry to a more service sector focus.

Page 71



28 | P a g e

According to the Barnsley Jobs and Business Plan 2014-17, more jobs, businesses and higher skilled residents are 
critical to future success.

Fig 16: Employment and Unemployment (Nomis: Jul 2015-Jun 2016)

Barnsley
(%)

Yorkshire And
The Humber
(%)

Great Britain
(%)

Economically Active 76.4 76.8 77.9
In Employment 71.1 72.2 73.8
Self Employed 7.7 9.3 10.3
Unemployed 6.1 5.8 5.1

The table above shows that Barnsley has a lower percentage of the population who are economically active 
compared to Yorkshire and Humber and Great Britain averages and more people who are unemployed.

The table below shows the comparisons by occupational sector. It shows that Barnsley has fewer people in higher 
level occupations and more in lower level occupations.

Fig 17: Employment by Occupation (Nomis: Jul 2015-Jun 2016)

Barnsley
(%)

Yorkshire 
And
The Humber
(%)

Great Britain
(%)

Soc 2010 Major Group 1-3 33.7 40.5 44.9
1 Managers, Directors And Senior Officials 7.5 9.3 10.5
2 Professional Occupations 14.2 18.2 20.0
3 Associate Professional & Technical 11.8 12.7 14.2
Soc 2010 Major Group 4-5 22.0 21.4 21.2
4 Administrative & Secretarial 9.3 10.0 10.5
5 Skilled Trades Occupations 12.6 11.2 10.5
Soc 2010 Major Group 6-7 22.6 17.5 16.8
6 Caring, Leisure And Other Service Occupations 10.3 9.3 9.2
7 Sales And Customer Service Occs 12.2 8.1 7.5
Soc 2010 Major Group 8-9 21.6 20.7 17.2
8 Process Plant & Machine Operatives 7.4 8.4 6.4
9 Elementary Occupations 14.1 12.2 10.7

Analysis undertaken by the Jobs and Business Plan states that Barnsley needs:

 39,000 new jobs – a 49% increase
 1,600 new businesses – a 32% increase
 12,100 higher skilled residents – a 39% increase

The Plan has also identified a number of industries that have a competitive advantage and can generate growth. 
From research, five primary sectors have been identified:

Page 72



29 | P a g e

 Advanced manufacturing
 Construction
 Visitor Economy
 Logistics
 Business Services

In addition, the Low Carbon and Creative and Digital Industries will also help the primary sectors to innovate and will 
be the target of support.

A key role for the Raising Participation Strategy is to ensure young people, their parents and carers and our 
stakeholders are aware of these demands and of the sectors that will generate jobs and of the skills needed for 
them. 

The Young People’s Skills and Enterprise Team have already worked closely with the Sheffield City Region and 
Careers Yorkshire and Humber to support the development of labour market information for use with parents, 
young people and schools that reflects the growth areas and emphasises the transferrable skills and myriad of 
progression pathways.

Page 73



30 | P a g e

APPENDIX IV: Consultation 

Young people participating in education, employment and training remains a high priority across the UK in the drive 
to continually develop a more highly skilled workforce to compete in a fast changing global economy. Young people 
need to develop the knowledge and skills that employers and the economy demand to prosper going forward. In 
order to achieve this locally we will need to support and inspire ALL young people in Barnsley to actively participate 
in the good post 16 provision available. 

The local authority and key stakeholders will endeavour to continue the progress made in reducing NEET and 
increasing participation. This remains a challenging environment as the declining NEET cohort leaves some of the 
most vulnerable young people requiring intensive support to move back into EET. This challenge is heightened due 
to the ongoing complexities surrounding the ever tightening public purse and the fundamental changes seen across 
the education and training landscape.

In order to ensure the Barnsley Raising Participation Strategy continues to meet need and delivers higher 
participation, a number of consultations with partners and stakeholders have taken place.

A comprehensive input about data, performance and key challenges has been shared with the Post-16 Partnership 
Board and the CEIAG Network and out of these in-depth conversations three key areas for improvement and/or 
further research have been agreed and are reflected in the delivery plan:

1. Data

 Use Barnsley College model re: data fields and include contact details of y/p
 Leaver data – could we look at ‘why someone has left?
 Research the NEET and NK group – follow a cohort and look at where they were NEET from and duration
 New NEET categories
 Research into those who have dropped out – back to origins and explore reasons why
 Look at process for sharing and challenging data: do we go back to providers enough and ask them to 

confirm their drop-out/non re-enrollers?
 Origins research into those who dropped out – Who? What from? Why?

2. Transition

 Summer schools esp. transition from Y12 to Y13
 Post-16 offer needs to reflect new situation – how can we use study programme more flexibly to do this like 

Really NEETs?
 Needs to reflect personal and social and have a clear focus on re-engagement
 Post-16 Provision Map – how do we ensure that all providers are aware of all provision to support retention 

and progression?
 Programmes to engage NEET: not available/taking a temporary break from learning
 NEET panel

3. Aspiration and Advice

 Good CEIAG for all and at all transition points – a Barnsley CEIAG Offer through IKIC website
 On-going IAG while y/p is engaging
 Support for parents/carers – work with Fire Service/Princes Trust and to draft a parent ambassadors model
 Information for parents/carers especially to those parents/carers of y/p who may not be EHE or not 

attending school – how can this link to the North Area Council IAG Tender?

Page 74



31 | P a g e

APPENDIX V: Participation Panel Terms of Reference

1) Context:
a) The joint BATM/Barnsley Council meeting on 26th July suggested that the establishment of a Participation 

Panel, similar to those in operation in other local authorities, may be beneficial in addressing the varying 
needs of the borough’s NEET cohort. 

2) Background
a) Participation Panels have been successful in other areas and have been identified as a best practice model 

to reduce NEETs and ensure young people are retained in EET
b) In NE Lincs and the City of York, Participation Panels meet monthly and focus on between 10 and 15 young 

people. Initially, the panel reviews previous cases and progress made. With each ‘new’ case, the young 
person’s ‘history’, needs and appropriate pathways are discussed. An offer of EET is agreed by the panel and 
the Personal Adviser then works with the identified provider to facilitate a start.

c) Barnsley was one of the first local authorities to adopt this approach and saw significant reductions in NEET 
numbers. However, it has not operated a Participation Panel for a number of years

3) Objectives:
a) The purpose of a Participation Panel would be:

i) To facilitate the design of future provision to meet the varying needs of young people across who are 
NEET or at risk of dropping out of provision in the borough and leads to sustained engagement and 
successful completion;

ii) To support young people into sustained education, employment or training for whom current provision 
and procedures have proven unsuccessful;

iii) To act as an operational group identifying appropriate provision for specific young people.

4) Proposal:
a) To establish a Participation Panel comprising colleagues from Barnsley Council and local providers in the 

borough. 

Frequency:
Monthly meetings separate from the Partnership meetings
Attendees:
Barnsley Council Young Peoples Skills and Enterprise staff and local providers
Operating Procedures:
1) Barnsley TIAG Service and Barnsley Post-16 providers to provide names and ‘thumbnail’ of 10 to 

15 individual young people requiring specific provision/progression to Angela Lomax 
angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk by 25th of every month

2) Panel to discuss young person’s needs, identify provision/progression and possible provider(s)
3) Panel to agree next steps to implement provision/progression and engage the young person.
Target Group of Young People:
Young people to be discussed would fulfil one or more of the following criteria:
1) Previously disengaged young people ready to participate but for whom mainstream provision is 

unsuitable at that point and thus require more tailored provision;
2) Those NEET due to being a young parent/carer
3) Those with numerous previous ‘incomplete starts’ in provision;
4) Young people with low confidence and/or low/no qualifications.
5) Those who are currently engaging but are at risk of dropping out because of poor attendance 

and/or unsuitability of current provision to meet needs
Possible Annual Focus
October and February – Early leavers and those at risk of leaving early from EET provision
September and October – Y11 Transition and those without a September Guarantee
November, December and January – Y12 and 13 NEET

Page 75

mailto:angelalomax@barnsley.gov.uk


32 | P a g e

APPENDIX VI: Post 16 Partnership Board Terms of Reference

Purpose

 To ensure a cohesive, coordinated borough wide strategy to increase participation in education, 
employment and training for all young people in Barnsley aged 16 – 19 (25 LLDD).

Outcomes

 A common understanding of current partnership performance in relation to young peoples participation
 A clear understanding of provision needs of the young people of Barnsley
 A curriculum/provision offer across the borough that evolves to address the identified needs in a timely and 

effective manner
 A common understanding of the full range of provision across the borough and each providers duty to 

promote this as appropriate to young people
 A mechanism to ensure continuity of provision and progression as young people move between 

provider/course

Membership 
 BMBC Young People’s Skill and Enterprise Strategy Manager
 BMBC Raising Participation Strategy Manager
 BMBC Post 16 Partnership Manager
 BMBC Post 16 data and systems officer
 Rep from schools’ CEIAG network group
 Representatives from providers working in Barnsley
 Employers rep from the Employment & Skills Board

Meetings
 The RPA Partnership board will meet quarterly to coincide with Barnsley MBC’s Corporate Reporting cycle.
 Board meetings will last a maximum of 2 hours.
 Board meeting will follow the set agenda set out below:

1. Apologies
2. Minutes of the last meeting
3. Matters arising
4. Quarterly Performance Data
5. Provision/curriculum development
6. IAG
7. Annual calendar items
8. National updates
9. A.O.B.

 Board meetings will be minuted with the role of minute taker being provided by staff in the Young People’s 
Skill and Enterprise Service

 Minutes to be shared with all board members as soon after the meeting as is possible.
 Additionally a partners briefing summarise key agenda items and discussion is to be sent of all partner 

organisations

Role and Responsibilities
1. To advise the More and Better Jobs Task Force on how Barnsley can increase the participation of its young 

people in education, training and employment with training.

Page 76



33 | P a g e

2. Develop and implement the Barnsley Raising Participation Strategy
3. Oversee the borough’s performance re non participation and ensure appropriate monitoring and evaluation 

processes are in place
4. Work in partnership to ensure a robust analysis of data and intelligence is used to inform the commissioning 

and planning of 16-19 (25 for LDD) provision that meets the evolving needs of the young people.
5. To support providers in the delivery of balanced, impartial and independent IAG to ensure all young people 

have a clear understanding of the full range of progression pathways available to them.
6. Provide a forum to ‘Test and Challenge’ the partnership’s performance and provision
7. Ensure the views of learners informs the strategy and is embedded in the work plan
8. Sponsor Task & Finish Groups to deliver issue based innovative solutions
9. Coordinate placement opportunities for vulnerable young people i.e. care leavers, YOT, LLDD

Page 77



34 | P a g e

Post 16 Partnership Board annual cycle of meeting agendas

Meeting agenda item April July October January
Quarterly Performance Data  Performance trends & 

detailed analysis to support 
curriculum planning for 
NEETs/NKs

 Profile of ETE learners by 
qualification being studied (EL; 
L1; L2; L3; etc)

 Profile of HE learners

 Performance trends & 
detailed analysis to support 
curriculum planning for 
NEETs/NKs

 ALPS travel to learn report

 Performance trends & 
detailed analysis to support 
curriculum planning for 
NEETs/NKs

 Outcomes KS4; post 16; links 
to qualification data

 Not Knowns
 Profile of ETE learners by 

qualification being studied (EL; 
L1; L2; L3; etc)

 Profile of HE learners

 Performance trends & 
detailed analysis to support 
curriculum planning for 
NEETs/NKs

 All aspects of sufficiency 
based on Oct school census & 
current provision map

 Year group numbers Y9 
onwards; SEND numbers by 
year group Y9 onwards; SEND 
cohort by need profile

 Activity survey
Provision/curriculum 
development

 Provision mapping to inform 
IAG for next academic year

 Confirmation of provision 
mapping

 Planning a summer 
programme

IAG  Update of Barnsley Council 
offer to support IAG

 AWP  Confirmation of TIAG team 
allocation for academic year

Annual calendar items  SEN update  Update of support service 
directory

 SEN update

National updates

P
age 78



35 | P a g e

APPENDIX VII: Young People’s Skills and Enterprise Team

Barnsley’s Young People’s Skills and Enterprise Service offers a wide range of information, advice and guidance 
activities to support young people to have high aspirations, make positive progressions into post-16 learning and 
fulfil their potential.

Through I Know I Can, the team works with young people from primary school, into secondary and beyond into 
post-16 to:

 INSPIRE: by building confidence and creating dreams and goals
 ENABLE: by helping young people acquire the appropriate qualifications and strengthen their life skills
 SUPPORT: by helping young people access information, advice and guidance to take ownership of their lives 

and future
Within the team, there are a number of projects and services delivering these three aims:

Enterprise Champions deliver a range of enterprise activities in primary and secondary schools across the borough, 
linking schools with businesses and enabling young people to develop employability skills needed for the world of 
work.

The IKIC Employability Champion supports a number of projects including IKIC BIG Challenge, the annual enterprise 
start-up competition; the Enterprise Adviser Network that helps schools provide real-life employer opportunities for 
their students.

The Raising Participation Service Manager supports a range of activities that help schools and governors deliver 
their statutory duties and Ofsted requirements with regard to Careers Education, Information, Advice and Guidance 
(CEIAG)

The Systems and Data Officer provides a wide range of information to schools. The risk of NEET indicator (RONI) 
helps them to target and shape their resource and the post-16 destination data (The Activity Survey) helps them 
measure impact.

The Targeted Information, Advice and Guidance (TIAG) Service provides  one-to-one bespoke support to enable 
targeted groups of vulnerable young people to participate and progress in education, employment or training that 
meets their needs and those of the local and regional economy. Specific groups supported are young people with 
special educational needs and disabilities (SEND); children in care (CiC); young people involved with the youth 
offending team (YOT) and young people not in education, employment or training (NEET).

The Training and Skills Service Manager ensures that there is the right mix and balance of post-16 opportunities to 
meet the needs of all young people and manages the High Needs Budget to ensure there are progression 
opportunities for those with multiple and complex special educational needs and disabilities (SEND).

The Under-graduate Placement leads on key projects including Pathways to Success; Work Inspiration Week and 
Supported Internships.

The Young People’s Project Manager supports on all of the teams projects and also leads on Ambition Barnsley, our 
annual and prestigious careers fair for young people in Years 9 to 11 as well as their parents and carers.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Responsible person/ 

organisation

19-Jan-18 02-Mar-18 27-Apr-18 08-Jun-18 13-Jul-18 07-Sep-18 19-Oct-18 30-Nov-18

Standing agenda items:

Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Board (BSCB) minutes Provide minutes/ a verbal update Bob Dyson After every 

BSCB meeting

Terms of Reference/ Partnership Agreement Revision Review annually


Richard Lynch Annually 

(Sept/Oct)

ToR/ Accountability and 

Governance

Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan Receive updates on progress
      

Julie Govan
Every meeting

(e-mail from Julie Govan 

24.11.2014)

CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance 

highlights/ risks

Identify issues for escalation
      

Theme leads/ all 

members
Every meeting

TEG 7 Nov 2014

TEG Work Programme review Highlight additions and forthcoming items 
      

Richard Lynch
Every meeting

Children and Young People's Plan Monitoring The CYP Plan monitoring template aims to 

articulate those actions and progress 

measures against outcomes which the 

partnership agrees collectively to support. 

Sub-group leads to report on performance 

measures to monitor/ challenge; provide 

updates into TEG; highlight where there are 

problems with performance

   

CYP Plan Champions. 

The responsibility of the 

identified TEG 

champions is to obtain 

progress against 

outcomes for reporting 

to TEG on a quarterly 

basis.

Quarterly

TEG 24 Nov 2016 (item 7).

Tackling child poverty and improving family life In-depth report on the work of the sub-group 

supporting this outcome, performance 

highlights and risks 



Andrea Hoyland/                        

Jayne Hellowell Annually

Deferred from March 2017 

meeting - e-mail from Andrea 

Hoyland 20.2.2017

Improving staff skills to deliver quality services In-depth report on the work of the sub-group 

supporting this outcome, performance 

highlights and risks 

 Amanda Glew Annually

Children's Workforce Development TEG agreed to support the approved 

implementation plan by continued 

commitment to partnership working via the 

Trust Workforce Development Group, to 

consider at a future meeting a stronger 

assurance/ evaluation framework; and to 

receive regular updates on progress.

   Amanda Glew
Regular 

updates

TEG 17 Jan 2014 (item 12)

Encouraging positive relationships and 

strengthening emotional health

In-depth report on the work of the sub-group 

supporting this outcome, performance 

highlights and risks 



Brigid Reid

Annually

Behaviour support and emotional wellbeing Action focused discussion  Brigid Reid

Access to therapeutic support and waiting times An update to be received by a future TEG 

meeting.
 

Brigid Reid/ Claire 

Strachan

TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 8

Keeping children and young people safe In-depth report on the work of the sub-group 

supporting this outcome, performance 

highlights and risks 



Bob Dyson/ Mel John-

Ross Annually

Early Help Self Assessment A report of findings to be completed and 

available by the 28th April 2017 and 

presented to TEG and BSCB (see briefing 

report from Mel JR)



Mel John-Ross TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 14 

and e-mail circulated to 

members 2.2.2017

Managing risk for children in care placed outside the 

Borough

Agreed that this would be brought back to a 

future TEG meeting. 


Mel John-Ross TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 3

Safeguarding Awareness Week To help promote it wider than the BSCB and 

BSAB.

Bob Dyson/ Mel John-

Ross

e-mail from Bob Dyson 

16.2.2017

Neglect Strategy To be considered by TEG once it has been 

to the BSCB on 24 March 2017. 

Bob Dyson/ Debbie 

Mercer

e-mail from Bob Dyson 

16.2.2017

Improving education, achievement and 

employability 

In-depth report on the work of the sub-group 

supporting this outcome, performance 

highlights and risks 



Margaret Libreri

Annually

             DRAFT TEG Work Programme 2018

Agenda Items Action
Dates of future TEG meetings during 2018

Frequency Source

P
age 81

Item
 9



Responsible person/ 

organisation

19-Jan-18 02-Mar-18 27-Apr-18 08-Jun-18 13-Jul-18 07-Sep-18 19-Oct-18 30-Nov-18

             DRAFT TEG Work Programme 2018

Agenda Items Action
Dates of future TEG meetings during 2018

Frequency Source

Vulnerable children with SEN Review of vulnerable children with SEN. 

SEN Strategy Group to drive this work 

forward at pace and a progress update 

report to be received by TEG at a future 

meeting. 

 

Margaret Libreri TEG 6 Oct 2016 (item 5)  TEG 

20 Jan 2017 (item 6)

Local Area Special Educational Needs Ofsted 

Inspection

Ensure inspection Readiness 


Margaret Libreri ECG 11.1.2016 (item 8)

Peer review on children missing education Results of a peer review on children missing 

education, taking place in the spring, to be 

brought back to TEG. 


Margaret Libreri TEG 24 Nov 2016 (item 4.1) 

Also see action log.

SEND Strategy SEND Strategy and Action Plan  Margaret Libreri

Careers advice and guidance Action focused discussion  Tom Smith

Supporting children, young people and families to 

make healthy lifestyle choices

In-depth report on the work of the sub-group 

supporting this outcome, performance 

highlights and risks 



Public Health/                              

Alicia Marcroft Annually

Smoking in Young People. Public Health strategic priority 1. Update on 

progress.

 Public Health, Diane 

Lee/Kaye Mann

TEG 6 Oct 2016 (item 9.1)

0-19 Public Health - HCP progress against new 0 – 19 

model

An update on the Healthy Start 0-19 

scheme to be provided to the TEG meeting 

in March as part of the 0-19 update

  Alicia Marcroft TEG 17 March 2016. TEG 20 

Jan 2017, item 9.

Healthy Weight Alliance - National Child Measurement 

Programme (NCMP)

Receive progress update  Rebecca Clarke TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 10

Oral health  Public Health strategic priority 2. Agreed in 

March 2016 to receive updates on progress 

in relation to these outcomes in the Public 

Health Strategy.

Public Health, Kaye 

Mann

TEG 17 March & Oct 2016

Agenda Items:

Stronger Communities Partnership  Provide updates to future meetings    Paul Hussey
Regularly

TEG 6 Oct 2016, item 8; TEG 

3 March 2017, item 6.

Looked After Children Sufficiency Strategy/ Foster Carer 

Placements

An action focused discussion had been held 

regarding how to collectively secure more 

foster carers in Barnsley. It was agreed that 

a progress report be received in six months' 

time. 

 

Richard Lynch/ Jon 

Banwell

Executive Commissioning 

Group 23 May 2016, item 5. 

TEG meeting 20 Jan 2017, 

item 7.

All Age Prevention and Early Help Strategy Annual position statement on the delivery of 

the Strategy and priorities for the year



Paul Hussey

Annually

TEG 6 Oct 2016, item 4.1 

(was on for 24 November 

2016 agenda). See TEG 

minutes 24 Nov 2016 and 

action log item 6(i). TEG 3 

March 2017, item 8.

Universal information and advice across all partnerships 

- findings and key deliverables

To be considered at a future TEG meeting. 

Denise to be advised when to schedule this 

for. 

Paul Hussey 6 Oct 2016 TEG  - 4.1 action 

log item 6(ii)

Transport Matt Gladstone to provide a progress report 

in relation to the issues raised by young 

people at the joint TEG/BSCB meeting.

 Matt Gladstone 24 Nov TEG 2016 meeting, 

item 7

Teenage Pregnacy Amy Booth to provide update as agreed in 

September 2017.

 Amy Booth 28 Sept 2017 TEG meeting 

item no. 9

CiC CAMHS Pathway Update Claire Strachan to provide update as 

agreed. 


email from Brigid Reid/Claire 

Stachan 21 July & 7 Nov 2017 

& Mel John-Ross 

Updates on progress

P
age 82



Responsible person/ 

organisation

19-Jan-18 02-Mar-18 27-Apr-18 08-Jun-18 13-Jul-18 07-Sep-18 19-Oct-18 30-Nov-18

             DRAFT TEG Work Programme 2018

Agenda Items Action
Dates of future TEG meetings during 2018

Frequency Source

Physical activity Public Health strategic priority 3. Agreed in 

March 2016 to receive updates on progress 

in relation to outcomes in the Public Health 

Strategy. Update to be received in April re. 

number of schools that have signed up to 

the Daily Mile programme. 



Place/ Public Health, 

Julie Tolhurst, Adam 

Norris

TEG 17 March 2016; 6 Oct 

2016 Item 4.1

Information sharing Baseline position to come back to a future TEG meeting.

 

Sara Hydon/ Wendy Lowder

24 Nov TEG meeting (item 6). 

TEG 20 Jan 2017, item 2.

Progress update from Parent and Carers Forum / (ECG 

action log Feb 2017 - working with Contact A Family,  

DfE Advisor,  SENDIASS and a small group of parents 

on options for developing a new co-production model, 

which will broaden the participation of parents beyond 

the traditional forum model and approach)

Report on progress  



Margaret Libreri

Annually

Agreed at TEG 29 April 2016, 

item 5 (last bullet); update on 

ECG action log Feb 2017 

noted that there is no longer a 

parent carer forum in place

Future in Minds’ progress from service (SWYFT) SWYPFT Requested via e-mail 

21.9.2016 - Angela Higgins 

(obo Sean Rayner)

Sexual Health update from service (Spectrum) Spectrum Requested via e-mail 

21.9.2016 - Angela Higgins

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



	 	

Children,  
Young People  
and Families
A Brighter Future

Barnsley Children and Young People’s Trust 

Children and Young People’s Plan 2016-2019

Page 85

Item 11



  

Delivering better 
outcomes for 
children and 
young people in 
the borough

Page 86



  Contents

365make every day count for every child

Foreword 4

Introduction 5

What young people have to say 6

Challenges 7

Barnsley CYPF Trust Plan for 2016-19 8

Working together to improve  

children’s outcomes 9

Glossary 10

Page 87



Barnsley benefits from a strong Children and 

Young People’s Trust, each external inspection or 

peer challenge completed during the life of the 

2013-2016 plan has reflected that the 

partnership has strong commitment from the 

range of agencies involved in its work. 

Importantly, we have made progress and the 

outcomes for children and young people are 

improving, although we collectively believe that 

they are not improving quickly enough and we 

still have much more to do. 

The shared ambition of the Barnsley Children and 

Young People’s Trust and Barnsley Safeguarding 

Children’s Board is to go beyond Ofsted’s latest 

judgment of ‘requires improvement’ and to 

deliver the best possible outcomes for local 

children, young people and families. This means 

collectively working together to deliver services 

which are judged to be at least good. In order to 

achieve this ambition, services for children, young 

people and families will continue to use the 

Continuous Service Improvement Framework with 

progress being monitored by the Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board.

As we worked to prepare the plan for the future, 

we asked the children and young people from 

Barnsley’s Youth Council about the priorities in 

the 2013-2016 Plan. We wanted to know if they 

were the right priorities. Their response was very 

clear; “the priorities are right - get on with it”. A 

very clear steer from the most important voice of 

all - that of children and young people!

This plan is intended to focus the collective effort 

of the partnership on the areas that we need to 

work on together to make a difference to the 

lives of Barnsley’s children and young people. We 

know that we have an important job to do to 

improve outcomes overall, to close the gap 

between us and the best in the country and to 

close the gap that exists for children and young 

people in the borough itself.

Rachel Dickinson
Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

Executive Director - People Directorate

Foreword
This Children and Young People’s Plan 2016-2019 
builds on the progress that the Barnsley Children 
and Young People’s Trust has made to deliver 
better outcomes for children and young people in 
the borough. 

365make every day count for every childPage 88



The core purpose of the Barnsley Children, 

Young People and Families Trust (CYPFT) is ‘To 

work together to improve children’s outcomes’. 

In an environment that is constantly changing in 

terms of policy changes; reducing financial 

resources; demography and local demand, it is 

vital that a healthy and productive partnership is 

maintained.

The Children and Young People’s Trust is a 

partnership which is representative of various 

services in Barnsley all working to improve the 

lives of children, young people and families. The 

Children’s Plan explains how this will be 

achieved. Our vision, strategic priorities and 

desired outcomes are set out in the diagram 

below. As a partnership we express these as ‘365 

- make every day count for every child’. We are 

collectively signed up to the 3 vision statements; 

6 strategic priorities; 5 outcomes. We know that 

delivering ‘365’ will only be achieved through the 

co-operation and commitment of all partners. 

This plan is shaped by the views and experiences 

of children, young people and families, elected 

members, partners and other stakeholders. It is 

informed by the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

(JSNA), the Joint Strategic Intelligence 

Assessment, and an assessment of our current 

performance.

More information about our vision, strategic 

priorities and outcomes to be achieved can be 

found in the appendix attached to this plan. 

Further information is also provided about the 
following:

• CYPF Trust Governance arrangements, which 

explains how the Trust works in co-operation with 

strategic partners to create a better future for 

Barnsley people. 

• A diagram of partnership working, and a brief 

introduction to the strategic boards that 

contribute to the work of the CYPF Trust.

• A summary of the demographics of the town, 

which provides the context in which the CYPF 

Trust and its partners operate.

• An explanation of how performance is 

monitored and further improvements driven 

through an improvement framework and 

continuous service improvement plan. 

• A glossary of abbreviations used throughout 

the plan.

Introduction

365 - make every day count for every child

VISION

Strong families, strong Barnsley

Every child in a ‘good’ school 

Success in learning and work

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 

Keeping children and young people safe

Improving education, achievement and 
employability including promoting apprenticeships

Tackling child poverty and improving family life

Supporting all children, young people and 
families to make healthy lifestyle choices

Encouraging positive relationships and 
strengthening emotional health

Improving staff skills to deliver quality services

OUTCOMES

Being healthy

Staying safe

Enjoying and achieving

Being an active citizen

Earning a good living365make every day count for every child PAGE 4 I 5Page 89



What young  
people have  
to say

Need more activities to 
help young people to make 
healthy lifestyle choices 

to stop young people 
taking drugs and getting in 

trouble with the police
How services are 

promoted is important. 
Need to make sure that 

young people are receiving 
the right information - 
more likely to read it on 

Facebook

Services need to 
be more appealing 

to young people and 
teenagers – more ‘cool’

Not enough 
information about 

e-cigsCAMHS tries to help family 
relationships and they work 
with the children to see if 

they can make things better 
for them. Should be something 
easier to access for families

Need improved mental  
health services for young people 

in Barnsley. Waiting times are too 
long – it’s stupid and wrong that 

children in care are waiting so long 
to get any help. That is having a 

big impact on people.

Need to trust young 
people more to know what 
we need and what is right 
for us. We are the future 
of this country. Need to 
listen to the problems of 

young people

Start in primary school 
to educate young children 

more to help them 
when making decisions, 

particularly in drugs and 
alcohol

PAGE 6 I 7 Page 90



  

Outcomes for children and young people in 

Barnsley are improving, but they are not 

improving quickly enough and the gap between 

us and the best in the country is still too wide. 

Raising aspirations and confidence and 

developing enterprising behaviour are the 

foundations for tackling health, deprivation and 

social concerns, as well as educational 

achievement. The focus of our collective effort is 

to move from dealing with the consequences of 

difficulties in children and young people’s lives to 

providing help at an early stage. We intend to 

work as a partnership to effectively prevent 

significant difficulties arising and support the 

delivery of better outcomes for children, young 

people and their families. Discharging 

safeguarding children responsibilities, however, 

remains at the heart of the service.

Challenges

365make every day count for every child

Current challenges facing the CYPF  
Trust include:

• Increase in the population and diversity of  

 children and young people

• Increase in complexity of need

• Rising costs and reducing resources

• Complexity within the children and young  

 people’s service system

• Delivering effective early help

• Effective implementation of education, health  

 and care plans

• Managing the demand for Children’s Social  

 Care Services

• Responding to the demands of the regulatory  

 and inspection framework

Every attempt is being made to ensure that 

services are as efficient as possible and that 

resources go to where they are most needed.  It 

is acknowledged that all partners across the 

CYPF Trust are facing challenging financial 

constraints and it is therefore vital to maintain 

strong and healthy partnership working 

arrangements to ensure efficient, effective and 

sustainable outcomes are achieved for Barnsley’s 

children, young people and families. 

Not enough 
information about 

e-cigs

Need to trust young 
people more to know what 
we need and what is right 
for us. We are the future 
of this country. Need to 
listen to the problems of 

young people

Page 91



    

Barnsley CYPF Trust 
Plan for 2016-19

This plan is designed to focus partnership action on 
our six strategic priorities. In addition, all partners 
agree that there are three areas which impact 
across the whole system that need to be 
progressed with urgency through the Barnsley 
Children and Young People’s Trust arrangements.365make every day count for every child

Aligning our effort and focussing on key areas for improvement.

Page 92



    

365
Making progress in these areas will have a 

significant impact on achieving better outcomes 

for children and young people:

1. Developing and improving our Early Help  
 offer, integrated across all partners and   
 rooted in our communities.

2. Transforming access to the right support, at  
 the right time in order to improve the   
 emotional health and wellbeing of children  
 and young people.

3. Improving behaviour and tackling persistent  
 non-attendance in schools.

We will work to align planning and resource 

allocation across the CYPF Trust in order to focus 

effort, wherever possible, to achieving these 

headline actions. Partner organisations will take 

responsibility for promoting the importance of 

addressing these actions with staff groups, 

parents and carers, children and young people 

and other stakeholders.

Wherever possible, we will ensure that services 

are integrated in a way that makes sense to 

children, young people and our communities, to 

avoid the need for duplication of effort and to 

facilitate a ‘no wrong door’ approach. Particular 

attention will be given to developing multi-

disciplinary and ‘team around the family’ 

approaches where required, including for those 

young people making the transition from primary 

to secondary phase education, and from 

children’s to adult services. 

Working together to improve 
children’s outcomes

FOCUS ON 
KEY AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
Early Help
Emotional Health and Wellbeing, Including Access to Services
Behaviour and Attendance

THINK FAMILY
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
Keeping Children and Young People Safe
Key Partnership: Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board
Improving Education, Achievement and Employability including the promotion and uptake of a range of apprenticeships
Key Partnerships: Barnsley Alliance Board, Barnsley Economic Partnership Board
Encouraging Positive Relationships and Strengthening Emotional Health
Key Partnership: Clinical Commissioning Group
Tackling Child Poverty and Improving Family Life
Key Partnership: Stronger Communities Partnership
Supporting All Children, Young People and Families to Make Healthy Lifestyle Choices
Key Partnership: Child Health Programme Board
Improving Staff Skills to Deliver Quality Services
Key Partnership: Strategic Workforce Development Group

VISION
Strong Families - Strong Barnsley 
Every Child in a Good School
Success in Learning and Work

PAGE 8 I 9Page 93



Glossary
BSCB Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board

CCG Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group

CYPFT Children, Young People and Families Trust

JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

LSP Local Strategic Partnership

SWYPFT South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust

PAGE 10 I 11

Acknowledgements 
CYP Trust Partners including Barnsley Schools
Commissioning Governance and Partnerships Team
Youth Council
Level 3 Design Apprentices, GEM Design Barnsley College

Page 94



365make every day count for every childPage 95



GEM Design Studio 01226 216788 / 0316

Page 96



 
The corporate vision for Barnsley is: Working together for a brighter future, a better Barnsley. 
 
We want: ‘A thriving and vibrant economy; people achieving their potential; and strong and 
resilient communities’. 
 
The vision of the CYPF Trust is:  for all Barnsley’s children to attend a school that has been 
graded as ‘good’ by Ofsted; success in learning and work; and ‘strong’ resilient families.  
 
The six strategic priorities for achieving this are:  
1. Keeping children and young people safe;  
2. Improving education, achievement and employability;  
3. Tackling child poverty and improving family life;  
4. Supporting all children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices; 
5. Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health;  
6. Improving staff skills to deliver quality services.   
 
Children and young people from the Youth Council were consulted about these priorities, and 
their response was “the priorities are right – get on with it!” 
 
If the vision is achieved we would expect healthy children and young people living in a safe 
environment, making healthy lifestyle choices, enjoying education and going on to achieve 
their full potential.  This would enable young people to secure good jobs so that they 
contribute to the economy, and become active citizens who are socially responsible and are 
contributing to society, creating a better Barnsley.  
 
Priorities where partnership effort can be aligned to have the biggest impact and make the 
most difference to children, young people and families: 
• Ensure all CYPF Trust partners effectively safeguard children and young people 
• A whole partnership approach to improving school attendance / improve educational 

attainment for all Barnsley’s children 
• Build resilient families and promote healthy lifestyle choices 
• Provide a strong early help offer / Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 
• A targeted response to supporting vulnerable young people to reduce risk taking 

behaviours 
• Strengthen the emotional health of children and young people  
• Good leadership and management skills to ensure that a skilled and confident workforce 

is working towards continuous improvement of services 
• A workforce that understands the changing demographic profile of Barnsley and has the 

ability to meet a diverse range of needs 
• Increased aspirations and improved economic stability in Barnsley 
• Change what is seen as ‘the norm’ in terms of behaviour and lifestyle choices 
 
We are developing a newly negotiated relationship between children, young people, parents, 
carers and families and service providers, designed to promote aspiration, motivation, 

THE VISION, STRATEGY AND PRIORITIES 

APPENDIX 1 

1 
 

Page 97



independence and long-term resilience.  Barnsley’s whole family approach to working with 
families continues with the implementation of the Early Help Assessment. 
 
Early Help services in Barnsley form part of the continuum of help and support to respond to 
the different levels of need of children and families. A new model for delivering early help 
services for families is being developed and will be implemented from 1 April 2016.  The 
model will ensure that families are able to access services at the earliest opportunity, from 
pre-birth until children are 19 years old, or 25 years old if the child or young person has a 
disability.   
 
The model will be based upon early help services delivered through Family Centres, IKIC 
centres and other suitable community venues so that families can access integrated services 
that make sense to them, in their community.  The move to Family Centres is built on the 
excellent work undertaken by Children’s Centres over the last decade and those delivered 
through the Targeted Youth Support Service.   
 
Family Centres will be non-stigmatised gateways to services for all families in their local 
community, recognising that targeted interventions and outreach services are vital in 
supporting families who need it most in order to narrow the gap in outcomes.  
 
The development of a Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) will see staff from a number of 
partner organisations working together in the same premises.  This will improve working 
practices and communication to the benefit of children and young people.  
 
The momentum for change with regard to meeting the needs of children and young people 
with special education needs/disability will be continued through the robust implementation 
of the ‘Special Educational Needs and Disability Code of Practice 2014’ by maintaining a clear 
focus on the participation of children and young people and their parents in decision-making 
processes. At an individual level this will focus on their involvement in the Education, Health 
and Care Planning process, and at a strategic level through appropriate consultation and 
coproduction of key areas of strategic development including the drive towards 
personalisation. Joint planning and commissioning of services within education, health and 
social care is becoming well established and further work around the strengthening of panel 
arrangements and the development of personal budgets to support assessed need will take 
place with multi-agency strategic partners.  
 
In the context of a stringent efficiency agenda and the need to secure value for money, whilst 
improving the quality of service and improved outcomes, work is in progress to review the 
range of local services along a continuum of need, from provision for all, early help services, 
targeted interventions and highly specialised services. We continue to explore whether we 
have the right services to address local need. 

 
Core qualities for an effective Children’s Service:  

• Professional curiosity 
• Ability to identify needs as early as possible  
• To offer the right service at the right time  
• Consider the needs of the whole family  
• Be tenacious  

2 
 

Page 98



• Provide respectful challenge  
• Strive for continuous improvement  
• Demonstrate performance  
• Work collectively to meet strategic priorities, key ambitions and improve outcomes 

 

 
The Children, Young People and Families Trust (CYPFT) works in co-operation with One 
Barnsley, which is the local Strategic Partner, is directly linked to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, and indirectly linked to the Barnsley Economic Partnership via the Barnsley Alliance 
Board.   
 
The work of the CYPF Trust is under the leadership of the BMBC Executive Director of the 
People Directorate, and brings together a range of partners to continue to create a better 
future for Barnsley’s children, young people and families, including closing the gaps in 
educational attainment, improving skills, reducing health inequalities and improving overall 
wellbeing. 
 
The following partners are represented on the CYPF Trust:  
• BMBC People Directorate - including education, early start and prevention, and children’s 

social care and safeguarding services  
• BMBC Public Health 
• Cabinet Member People: Achieving Potential 
• Cabinet Member People: Safeguarding Barnsley’s Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)  
• Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
• Voluntary Action Barnsley 
• Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
• Schools, and School Governors 
• Youth Council 
• Barnsley College  
• South Yorkshire Police 
• South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) 
• Barnsley Local Medical Committee 
• Job Centre Plus 
 
The One Barnsley Board of the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) is responsible for agreeing the 
overall strategic direction for achieving the economic and social wellbeing of the Borough, as 
outlined in the vision and objectives of the following two strategies: 

• Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2013-16) – responsibility for achieving the vision 
and objectives of the strategy rests with the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES TRUST GOVERNANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS 

3 
 

Page 99



• Barnsley Jobs and Business Growth Plan (2014-17) – previously known as the Barnsley 
Economic Strategy. Responsibility for achieving the strategic objectives of the Plan, rests 
with the Barnsley Economic Partnership (BEP)     

 
Through its responsibility for improving outcomes for children, young people and families, the 
Barnsley Children, Young People and Families Trust Executive Group, together with its sub-
groups and the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board, contributes to the strategic objectives 
of both the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board and the Barnsley Economic Partnership. In 
structural terms, the Trust forms part of the governance arrangements of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 

 
As part of these LSP arrangements, Barnsley MBC’s own performance on delivering the 
outcomes of the 3 priorities of its Corporate Plan (2015-18), including improving outcomes for 
children, young people and families, is accountable to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. Further 
challenge and accountability is provided through the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Safeguarding Scrutiny Committee. 

4 
 

Page 100



Children, Young People and Families Trust Arrangements 

PARTNERSHIP WORKING TO DELIVER IMPROVED SERVICES FOR BARNSLEY’S 
CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES 

ONE BARNSLEY 

BARNSLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING  
CHILDREN BOARD (BSCB) 

 
Sub Committees: 
• Performance Policy & Practice Development 
• Child Sexual Exploitation  
• Performance, Audit and Quality Assurance 
• Children’s Disability and Complex Needs    
• Serious Case Review 
• Workforce Management Development Group 
• Child Death Overview Panel 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMISSIONING GROUP (ECG) 

Children’s Resource Allocation Group (CRAG); Education, Health and Care Plan Needs 
Assessment Panel (NAP); and Resource Allocations Panel (RAP1) 

 

CYPF TRUST  
EXECUTIVE GROUP (TEG) 

Sub Groups: 
• Barnsley Youth Council 
• Care4Us Council 
• Corporate Parenting Group 
• Child Health Programme Board – Public Health 
• Disabled Children Programme Board  
• Stronger Communities Partnership 
• Youth Offending Strategic Management Group 
• Barnsley Allience Board  
• Continuous Service Improvement Group (reports to TEG & BSCB) 

 

● THIRD SECTOR PARTNER AGENCIES ● PARENT AND CARER FORUM    ● HEALTHWATCH 

P
age 101



 
Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board is a statutory organisation responsible for agreeing 
how services and agencies work together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children 
and young people in the borough, and for ensuring that they do so effectively. All local 
authorities are required to have a Local Safeguarding Children Board to comply with Section 
13 of the Children Act 2004.  

The Board brings together senior representatives from the key statutory, voluntary and 
community sectors with a responsibility for delivering services to children and young 
people. The Board also has two lay members who are representative of the local community 
in Barnsley. 

Members of the Board work to keep children and young people in Barnsley safe from harm, 
particularly those who are most vulnerable, and to make sure that they feel secure, well 
cared for, and able to reach their full potential. They also provide support and training for 
those who work with children and young people, in whatever capacity, to make sure that 
they are fully aware of their roles and responsibilities in relation to safeguarding, and that 
they are appropriately qualified. 

The work of the Board falls into the wider context of our Children's Trust arrangements, 
which focus on improving the overall wellbeing of all Barnsley children and young people to 
ensure that children and young people are cared for, have security and stability and are kept 
safe. 

The Barnsley Alliance Board 
This is a partnership model based on sector-led school improvement. School to school 
support is commissioned through a combination of Teaching School Alliances and system 
leaders. A new relationship with the Council recognises that whilst the sector will be 
responsible for the improvement agenda, the Council retains a shared statutory 
responsibility for outcomes. The Barnsley Alliance Board ensures that we have the right 
level of support and challenge to ensure that the quality of provision drives improved 
outcomes. 
 
The make-up of the Board is generally based on the nine geographical ‘pyramids’ within the 
Borough, and each pyramid has elected a representative to sit on the Alliance Board. In 
addition to these nine members there are three representatives from the Barnsley 
Governors Association (BGA); the Executive Director for People; the Service Manager for 
Education, Early Start and Prevention; and the Cabinet Spokesperson for Education and 
Skills.  
 
The Board meets each month to agree support to schools causing concern, and borough 
wide professional development.  In addition, Local Authority officers will periodically report 
back to the Board on the impact of this commissioned work. 
 

STRATEGIC BOARDS THAT CONTRIBUTE TO THE WORK OF THE 
CYPF TRUST 

Page 102

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/31/contents


Stronger Communities Partnership 
This newly established partnership will provide a strategic focus, strengthening areas where 
necessary, and will ensure that there is no duplication of effort.  Priorities will be progressed 
through three Delivery Groups: 
1. Delivery Group One - Resilient and Healthy Communities 
2. Delivery Group Two - Early Help and Prevention 
3. Delivery Group Three - Anti-Poverty 
 
Both the Children and Young People’s Trust and the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
will remain sighted on progress.  
 
Community Safety Partnership 
Barnsley Community Safety Partnership is a statutory partnership, composed of 
organisations including Barnsley MBC, South Yorkshire Police and Voluntary Action Barnsley. 
Its statutory role is to reduce crime and disorder, including anti-social behaviour in the 
Borough. Among the continuing priorities of the Partnership, based upon the Joint Strategic 
Intelligence Assessment,  is to help reduce youth offending, and re-offending and, also, to 
reduce hate crime, including racial or homophobic bullying in schools as well as to tackle 
domestic violence and violent, controlling or coercive behaviour in the home and the 
harmful effects upon children. 
 
In addition, the recently created Barnsley Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub or MASH, in which 
the Community Safety Partnership plays a prominent part, acts as the first point of contact 
for anyone who is concerned for a child or young person’s safety and wellbeing, including 
suspicions that a child may be the subject of grooming for radicalisation or sexual 
exploitation. The Barnsley MASH ensures a more coherent and consistent response to 
safeguarding concerns over children and young people. 
 
 
 
 

7 
 

Page 103



 
The demographics of the town are summarised below and outlined in full in the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).  
 
ECONOMIC BASE 
Barnsley is part of a broad South Yorkshire conurbation located around traditional 
community bases of former mining, glass making and market towns.  The current main 
sources of employment are varied and more difficult to categories but include the public 
sector, manufacturing, retail, accommodation and food services and financial and business 
services. The labour market is a mixed economy of both skilled and unskilled labour.   
 
GOVERNANCE AND LEADERSHIP 
There are 63 councillors across 21 wards, currently made up of: 
• 55 Labour 
• 4 Independent Group 
• 4 Conservative  

 
EMPLOYMENT 
• 73% of the working age population in Barnsley is in employment (ONS July 2014 to July 

2015).  This is the same as the national average and slightly higher than the regional 
average. 

• 13.7% of the working age population are claiming Key Benefits (DWP, Feb 15). This figure 
is higher than the regional average (11.0%) and the national average (9.4%). 

• Barnsley is ranked the 38th (out of 326) most deprived area in relation to employment in 
England. 

 
DEPRIVATION & POVERTY 
• The 2015 Index of Multiple Deprivation identifies Barnsley as the 39th most deprived 

local authority in England. 
• Child poverty in Barnsley is higher than the England average, with 22.8% of Barnsley’s 

children under 16 years living in low income families compared with an 18.6% national 
rate. 

• Children from deprived backgrounds are more likely to have complicated health 
histories over the course of their lifetime, including a lower life expectancy. 

• The ONS’s study into teenage conception rates in England found that rates were highest 
in the most deprived areas (ONS, 2014). The latest data shows Barnsley’s teenage 
pregnancy rate is 40.9 per 1,000 of the population (ONS, 2013). This is over a third 
higher than the national and regional averages of 24.3 and 28.5. 

 
DEMOGRAPHICS 
The latest Mid-Year Estimates for 2014 from the Office for National Statistics (ONS)  show 
that the population of Barnsley grew to 237,800 at the end of June 2014, representing a 
gain of 2,100 (0.9%) over the previous year. 
 
 

BARNSLEY AND ITS PEOPLE 

Page 104



The reasons for population change were as follows:  
• Internal migration = 43.9%  
• Natural change (births minus deaths) = 25.6% (there were 2,756 births and 2,222 

deaths) 
• International migration = 29.4%  
• Other = 1.1%  

 
The Barnsley Population was as follows: 
• 43,800 aged 0 to 15 years (18.4% of the total population) 
• 150,100 of working age 16 to 64 years (63.1% of the total population) 
• 44,000 aged 65 years and over (18.5% of the total population) 
• The number of children and young people aged under-20 years of age in Barnsley was 

estimated at 55,000. 
• The latest population projections estimate that the population of Barnsley is to 

continue to increase, reaching 239,400 in 2016 and 245,400 in 2020.  
• It is predicted that the number of 0-15 year olds will increase by 6.2% from 2014 to 

2020. 
 
Population estimates by nationality:   
• British 97.4% 
• Non British from European Union 2.1% 
• Non British from Non-European Union 0.4% 
• The number of minority ethnic pupils from Reception to Year 11 according to the 2015 

School Census is 1,887, 6.9% of the total school population.  
 
Migrants: 
• The overall number of new migrant workers arriving in Barnsley in 2014 rose sharply to 

over 2000, due mainly to increases particularly from accession countries; the greatest 
change was an increase of 1100 Romanian arrivals since 2013.  

• The number of new migrant workers from EU accession countries was 1800 in 2014; a 
jump from fewer than 500 during the past five years.  

• The level of workers from non-accession countries fell slightly to around 230 in 2014, 
the top country of origin being Eritrea.  

• The top country of origin overall is Romania with 1100 arrivals, this has pushed the 
previous position leader, Poland, into second place with 520.  

• Some asylum seekers are housed and supported here through the Home Office 
dispersal system. Published Home Office figures show that at the end of June 2015, 394 
people were being supported in Barnsley while awaiting a decision.  

Source: Barnsley Local Migration Profile, July 2015 from Migration Yorkshire website. 
 
Number of children and young people in Barnsley with a special education need or 
disability: 
• Total number of pupils: primary 20,719; secondary 11,545 
• Total number of children attending a special school setting 390 
• Number of primary pupils with SEND 3,292  
• Number of secondary pupils with SEND 1,425  
• Total number of pupils with a statement or Education, Health and Care Plan 11 

9 
 

Page 105



 
The Improvement Framework drives further improvement across the Children and Young 
People’s Trust which is monitored through the continuous service improvement plan, and is 
scrutinised by both the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board and the Children and Young 
People’s Trust Executive Group.  The Safeguarding Children Board holds the responsibility for 
ensuring that progress against the framework is made.   
 
Robust performance and programme management is in place in relation to each of the 
strategic priorities, including a Performance Management Framework, performance 
indicators, clear outcome measures, and targets accounting for statistical neighbours and 
national averages for each of the six priorities.  
 
Performance is regularly reported through the relevant Governance structures within the 
Children and Young People’s Trust and the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board and its sub-
groups. 

PERFORMANCE, QUALITY AND OUTCOMES 

10 
 

Page 106



 
BEP Barnsley Economic Partnership 

BGA Barnsley Governors Association 

BSCB Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 

CCG Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 

CYPFT Children, Young People and Families Trust 

DWP Department for Works and Pension 

IKIC I Know I Can 

JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

LSP Local Strategic Partnership 

MASH Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub 

ONS Office for National Statistics 

SWYPFT South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust 
 

GLOSSARY 

11 
 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



 
KEEPING CHILDREN AND YOUNG 

PEOPLE SAFE 
 
 

TEG Champion: 
Bob Dyson and Mel John-Ross 

 
IMPROVING EDUCATION, 

ACHIEVEMENT AND 
EMPLOYABILITY 

 

TEG Champion: 
Margaret Libreri 

 
TACKLING CHILD POVERTY AND 

IMPROVING FAMILY LIFE 
 
 

TEG Champion: 
Wendy Lowder/ Jayne Hellowell 

 
SUPPORTING ALL CHILDREN, 

YOUNG PEOPLE & FAMILIES TO 
MAKE HEALTHY LIFESTYLE 

CHOICES 

TEG Champion: 
Penny Greenwood 

 

 
ENCOURAGING POSITIVE 

RELATIONSHIPS AND 
STRENGTHENING EMOTIONAL 

HEALTH 

TEG Champion: 
Brigid Reid 

 

 
IMPROVING STAFF SKILLS TO DELIVER 

QUALITY SERVICES 
 
 

TEG Champion: 
Amanda Glew 

 

KEY AMBITIONS TO PROGRESS CHANGE 

 The Ofsted Improvement Notice 
that was previously in place has 
been lifted, and the Ofsted 
Improvement Plan has been 
replaced by a Continuous Service 
Improvement Plan through which 
the Safeguarding Children Board 
maintains oversight of, and carries 
forward, actions to ensure the 
continued improvement of 
services to, and outcomes for, 
children, young people and 
families in Barnsley 

 Ensure all Board members are up 
to date with changes in policy, 
guidance and practice to enable 
them to provide strategic direction 
and scrutiny of core safeguarding 
and child protection processes 
and data, and provide effective 
challenge. 

 Develop and improve performance 
management and quality 
assurance systems to ensure 
robust and continuous service 
improvement, supported by 
workforce development 
programmes to secure safe 
practice. 

 Ensure that the Board maintains a 
comprehensive overview of the 
work of partner agencies involved 
with safeguarding children, 
including the Voluntary 
Community Sector (VCS) 

 The Board receives assurance 
that the Sub-Groups reflect and 
provide for the requirements of 
Working Together guidance 

 To ensure the implementation of 
the actions contained in the Child 
Sexual Exploitation Strategy. 

 There is a commitment to 
establish a Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) that 
will see staff from a number of 
organisations working together in 
the same premises. This will 
improve working practices and 
communication to the benefit of 
children and young people 

 

 Close the attainment gap in  Early 
Years outcomes between Barnsley 
and National averages 

 Improve school attendance so that 
it reflects at least national 
averages 

 Support all children and young 
people, including the most 
vulnerable groups, to achieve their 
highest potential, narrowing the 
gap between national and local 
performance 

 Promote good transition through 
education and encourage young 
people to access further/ higher 
education 

 Improve the quality of teaching and 
learning  

 Improve leadership capacity in 
schools at all levels 

 Further improve emotional health, 
resilience and behaviour of young 
people so that it does not hinder 
achievement 

 Robustly utilise the Barnsley 
Alliance Support, Challenge and 
Intervention policy to improve 
outcomes for young people and 
improve the number of good and 
outstanding schools 

 Through The Barnsley Alliance, 
further develop sector led 
improvements, brokered and 
commissioned support for schools 
and quality assure support and 
intervention 

 Develop comprehensive learning 
pathways for young people 14-19 
(25 for pupils with SEND) 

 Develop a range of alternative 
provision in collaboration with local 
providers and local businesses 

 Work with the business community 
and training providers to increase 
opportunities for all young people 
within the workplace including 
providing and promoting the take 
up of a range of apprenticeships. 

 Promote lifelong learning to 
increase skills and aspirations to 
achieve success, wellbeing and 
economic stability 

 ‘Make Poverty Everyone's 
Business' and place core Anti-
Poverty themes at the centre of 
family support and intervention 
work i.e., employment, 
independence and protection 

 Support the Anti-Poverty Delivery 
Group to implement action plan 

 Reduce child poverty to help 
Barnsley parents give their children 
the best start in life. This is a key 
aim within the Barnsley Anti-
Poverty Delivery Plan 

 Improve access to welfare advice 
and associated support services  

 Development of a second 
Community Shop in Athersley 

 Improve access to affordable  
credit 
 

 Ensure the 0-19’s integrated 
public health service for children 
and young people will make a 
major contribution to the 
development of self-esteem; 
positive relationships; and healthy 
behaviour and lifestyle choices.  

 A targeted approach to improving 
the oral health of children.  

 Reduce childhood obesity starting 
with a focus on the areas of 
highest prevalence. 

 Create a smoke-free generation 
with a particular focus on reducing 
smoking in pregnancy.  

 Ensure sexual health services, 
including contraceptive services, 
are accessible, personalised and 
effective, and reduce under-18 
conceptions.  

 Ensure physical activity 
opportunities and healthy eating 
are embedded in school based 
programmes 

 Work with early years services to 
ensure children are ready for 
school and opportunities are 
identified to tackle the causes of 
child poverty. 

 
 
 

 Strengthen the pace and focus on 
improvements in access and waiting 
times to Child and Adolescent Mental 
Health Services (CAMHS) to provide 
a timely and effective response.  
CAMHS has committed to reducing 
the waiting time for the initial (Choice) 
appointment to 5 weeks by the end of 
March 2016. 

 Improve the crisis care of children 
and young people (as highlighted in 
the Mental Health Crisis Care 
Concordat).  Additional funding (via 
the Local Transformation Plan) has 
been made available and will be 
utilised to enhance the operation of 
an SPA within CAMHS and will also 
enable priority access to CAMHS for 
C&YP via the YOT and LAC 

 Strengthen and maintain the capacity 
of the workforce within universal 
services to promote emotional health 
and wellbeing and to support all 
children, young people and their 
families to respond appropriately.  
Barnsley’s Local Transformation Plan 
focuses on the development of a 
‘Resilience’ model of delivery within 
schools to meet the emotional health 
and wellbeing needs of children and 
young people. The initial focus will be 
developing resilience of primary 
school children. Barnsley’s Local 
Transformation Plan supports the 
development of a school-based 
Mental Health Therapeutic Service to 
be accessible by all schools in the 
borough, initially focusing on 
secondary schools  

 Ensure that children and young 
people have the opportunity to 
influence and shape development of 
the strategy that supports services 
required to promote emotional 
resilience. 

 To conclude the commissioning 
review of domestic violence. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

 Establish common core skills, attitudes 
and behaviours for the children’s 
workforce to deliver safe practice and 
improved experience and outcomes for 
children, young people and families, 
including: being professionally curious; 
being able to identify needs as early as 
possible across the spectrum of 
outcomes; being able to offer the right 
service at the right time; consider the 
needs of the whole family; be tenacious 
and provide respectful challenge when 
necessary; strive for continuous 
improvement; demonstrate improved 
performance. 

 Good leadership and management skills 
to ensure that the workforce is 
appropriately skilled and working towards 
continuous improvement. 

 A workforce with an understanding of 
multi-agency working. 

 Satisfied service users. 

 Joined up Workforce Development 
Group 
 
 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES FOR 2016-19 

P
age 109



HOW THE AMBITIONS WILL BE ACHIEVED 
To support its function, the BSCB has 
a number of sub committees that 
focus on the priorities as identified by 
the Board: 

 The Child Death Overview Panel 
(CDOP) 

 The Serious Case Review (SCR) 
Sub-Committee  

 The Child Sexual Exploitation 
(CSE) Strategy Group 

 The Performance, Audit and 
Quality Assurance (PAQA) Sub-
Committee  

 The Policy, Procedures & Practice 
Developments (PPPD) Sub-
Committee  

 The Children With Disabilities & 
Complex Health Needs 
(CWDCHN) Sub-Committee 

 The Workforce Management & 
Development (WMD) Sub-
Committee  

Through these Sub-Groups, full 
Board Meetings, Themed Audits and 
Section 11 Audits, the Board ensures 
the requirements of Working 
Together 2015 guidance are satisfied. 

 

 Work proactively with key 
stakeholders, including families, to 
improve school attendance and 
attainment through The Barnsley 
Alliance working groups which 
focus specifically on: Improving 
Attainment and Achievement; 
Improving the quality of Teaching 
and Learning; Improving Behaviour 
and Attendance; Developing 
Leadership Capacity and Closing 
the Achievement Gap for our most 
vulnerable groups of young people 

 Hold to account, the Barnsley 
Alliance Working Groups, for their 
Key Performance Indicators and 
through the Alliance Board’s 
evaluation procedures 

 Develop focused training for 
schools on the areas identified as 
weaknesses and evaluate impact 
in practice based observations 

 Develop a comprehensive menu of 
alternative provision opportunities 
for young people in schools to 
prevent exclusions, reduce NEETs 
and ensure pupils achieve at least 
expected progress  

 Increase development and 
employment opportunities for 
young people within Barnsley by 
working with businesses and 
providers, including BMBC 

 Provide a coordinated and 
targeted programme of support to 
vulnerable young people to reduce 
unsafe behaviours 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The Council and its partners have 
refreshed the governance 
arrangements for stronger 
communities.  A new partnership 
board is in place and has 3 delivery 
groups reporting into it.  Under the 
new governance arrangements of 
the Stronger Communities 
Partnership the key Anti-Poverty 
themes will be embedded through 
the work of the Anti-Poverty and 
Early Help Delivery Groups, the 
delivery of Phase 2 of the Troubled 
Families Programme and 
developing Early Help and 
Prevention agenda. A continued  
emphasis on the needs of both the 
adults and children in families and 
responses that focus on building 
resilience in individuals, families, 
and communities will build on and 
expand  Early Help and Prevention 
approaches to support an increase 
in co-produced, community 
delivered and self-directed support, 
and enable more efficient and 
targeted delivery of support 
services 

 The Anti-Poverty Delivery Group, 
will seek to ensure that partner 
strategies and plans target their 
support towards children and 
families who are most affected by 
poverty. They will provide a 
support and challenge role to 
partners and ensure the delivery of 
the Action Plan 

 The contribution of Children’s 
Services colleagues will ensure 
that the impact of poverty on 
children's life chances is prioritised 
by linking their strategies and 
service plans to activities in the 
Anti-Poverty Action Plan, this will 
include workforce development 

 The consultation and Poverty 
Needs Assessment/ Insight 
elements of work will form part of 
the wider needs assessment 
activity required to inform the work 
of the Anti-Poverty Delivery Group 
of the Stronger Communities 
Partnership and demonstrate the 
impact of partner activities to 
combat and tackle poverty in 
Barnsley 

 
 
 
 
 

 Commission all mandated Public 
Health Services in a way which 
underpins a life course approach 
to healthy lifestyle choices, early 
help, prevention and 
improvement.  

 Ensure a healthy start in life, early 
intervention and prevention for 
every child through effective 
coverage of pre-conception, pre-
natal and perinatal care, health 
visiting, immunisation and public 
health services.  

 The Oral Health Improvement 
Advisory Group will provide a 
system to drive forward oral health 
improvement across the borough.  

 Through the Integrated Wellness 
Service – Be Well Barnsley – we 
will ensure that stop smoking 
services are accessible to all 
smokers, targeted to areas of high 
deprivation and provide a families 
programme to support reducing 
childhood obesity level 

 Resilience and sex and 
relationship programmes will be 
embedded in all secondary 
schools. 

 Increase physical activity levels 
and engagement with sport. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The Local Transformation Plan 
(LTP) Implementation Group will 
implement the Plan to ensure the 
development of a whole-systems 
approach to promoting and meeting 
the needs of Barnsley’s children and 
young people in relation to their 
emotional health and wellbeing.  

 Be clear on the emotional health 
and wellbeing needs of children, 
young people and families, and the 
best practice to meet the needs, in 
order to create an effective culture, 
ethos and response.    

 Implement National 
recommendations ‘Future in Mind’.  

 The Youth Council and other forums 
including CYP IAPT, to ensure the 
involvement of children and young 
people in service developments. 

 Job Profiles and/or contracts to be clear 
about the skills and abilities of the 
workforce. 

 Engage children, young people and 
families in planning and implementing 
the workforce strategy and in the 
recruitment process. 

 Induction process to include the 
purpose, vision and strategic priorities of 
the Children’s Trust. 

 Managers to monitor performance via 
regular 1:1 supervision meetings and 
Professional Development Reviews or 
equivalent, and be committed to support 
continuous professional development. 

 Improved information sharing to support 
multi-agency working.  

 Seek service user feedback to 
continuously improve their experience of 
services. 

 Implementation of leadership 
management and programmes. 

 Continue to explore and improve how 
training can be evaluated to show 
impact. 

P
age 110



HOW WILL WE KNOW IF A DIFFERENCE IS BEING MADE? 

 Through the results of Quality 
Audits evidencing an improvement 
in working practices. 

 By key performance indicators 
evidencing an improvement. 

 By implementing the new Early 
Help Service in April 2016. 

 By establishing the Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 

 Increase in the number of good 
and outstanding schools in Ofsted 
Inspection outcomes 

 Increase in the proportion of 
schools’ Ofsted grades reflecting 
good and outstanding teaching 
and pupil learning 

 Increase in the proportion of 
schools’ Ofsted grades reflecting 
good and outstanding leadership, 
including governance 

 Pupil progress outcomes at all key 
stages will be at least in line with 
national levels 

 The Barnsley Alliance will be 
leading sector led improvements 

 No Improvement Reviews will be 
required 

 There will be no schools identified 
RED in the Alliance School 
Support Plan and the number of 
schools identified as GREEN will 
have increased  

 A menu of alternative provision 
pathways for young people will be 
published in a prospectus and 
pathways will be well utilised 

 Permanent exclusions will be 
reduced for all young people 
including the most vulnerable 

 Fixed term exclusions will be 
reduced for all young people 
including the most vulnerable 

 Persistent absence will be reduced 
for all young people including the 
most vulnerable 

 Agencies will be working together 
to deliver effective Early Help to 
address the health and well-being 
needs of young people and their 
families 

 The number of pupils who remain 
in the Pupil Referral Unit in the 
long term will be reduced 

 The number of pupils referred to 
Fair Access Panel will be reduced 

 Through Key Performance 
Indictors (KPIs) monitored through 
the Stronger Communities 
Partnership and Anti-Poverty 
Delivery Group 

 Stories of impact and challenge 
from families  

 Improved health outcomes for 
children and young people 

 Improved Breast feeding rates 

 Children have a healthy weight 

 Reduced smoking in pregnancy 
rates  

 Demonstrable improvement in  
smoke free generation (Breathe 
2025 Campaign) 

 Reduced under-18 conceptions 

 Improved oral health of children 

 Increased levels of activity 

 Improved school readiness  
 

 Waiting Times for Choice 
appointments will reduce to less 
than 5 weeks and this will be 
sustained 

 Schools will be able to share 
examples of how early signs of 
emotional distress are effectively 
managed and how well being is 
promoted 

 Effective use of School Nurses will 
be made to ensure universal 
services are fully deployed to 
prevent the need for specialist 
intervention and when the latter is 
required to ensure effective referrals 
are made and utilised (reduction in 
DNAs) 

 Good feedback from service users 

 Managers have undertaken the 
leadership development programmes 

 The workforce have up-to-date 
Professional Development Reviews or 
equivalent 

 Improved multi-agency working 

 A confident and skilled workforce 

 Appropriately targeted services being 
delivered at the right time 

 Remove pressure on front line social 
care services 

 Resilient, sustainable and stable 
workforce 

 Workforce has a shared understanding 
of the vision 

 Evidence from Section 11 audit 
challenge 

Key partnership:  

 Barnsley Safeguarding Children 
Board 

Key partnerships:  

 Barnsley Alliance Board  

 Barnsley Economic Partnership 
Board 

 Schools 

 Local and Regional Alternative 
Education Providers 

 Local and Regional Businesses 

 Barnsley College 
 

Key partnerships:  

 Stronger Communities Partnership 

 Anti-Poverty Delivery Group 

 Early Help Delivery Group 
 

Key partnership:  

 Child Health Programme Board 

 Oral Health Improvement Advisory 
Group 

 Smokefree Barnsley Tobacco 
Control Alliance 

 Smokefree Children and Young 
People Expert Partnership Group 

 Maternal and Infant Nutritional 
Steering Group 

 Healthy Start Steering Group 

 Healthy Weight in children and 
young people Expert Partnership 
Group 

Key partnerships:  

 C&YP Executive Commissioning 
Group 

 C&YP Trust Executive Group 

Key partnerships:  

 Workforce Management and 
Development Sub-Group 

P
age 111



 Stronger Communities 
Partnership 

 Barnsley Sport and Active 
Lifestyle Strategy Group 

 Sexual Health Expert Group 

 Links to Early Help (Children ) 
Stronger Communities 
Partnership 

Key plans:  

 Annual business plan  

 Ofsted improvement  plan  

 BMBC SHSC Service Delivery 
Plan 

 Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy 

 Individual Service Plan 
 

Key plans: 

 Barnsley Alliance Plan 

 More and Better Jobs Strategy 

 Early Help Strategy 
 

Key plans: 

 Anti-Poverty Strategy 

 Anti-Poverty Action Plan 

 Early Help Action Plan 

Key plans:  

 Public Health Strategy 2016-18 

 Barnsley Oral Health 
Improvement Strategy 2015-18 

 Tobacco Control Alliance Action 
Plan 

 Barnsley Sport and Active 
Lifestyle Strategy 2015-18 

 Healthier Resilient Communities 
Action Plan 

 Healthy Child Programme and 
associated plans 

 Barnsley Sexual Health Strategy 
(2013) 

Key plans:  

 Barnsley’s Local Transformation 
Plan (considers the 49 
recommendations of Future in Mind) 

 Barnsley’s all-age Mental Health 
Commissioning Strategy (currently in 
draft to be submitted to the CTB on 
17.12.15.) 

 Barnsley Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy and the CCG 
Commissioning Plan 2014-2019 

 BMBC Corporate Plan 2015-2018 

Key plans:  

 Children's Trust Workforce Strategy 
(includes links to partner agency 
workforce plans) 

 

 

P
age 112



BARNSLEY CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S TRUST 
EXECUTIVE GROUP (TEG) MEETING DATES FOR 2018

Date of meeting Time Venue

19 January 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom)

2 March 2018 13.30 – 16.30 Town Hall, Meeting room 11
Note change of time and venue

27 April 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom)

8 June 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom)

13 July 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom)

7 September 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom)

19 October 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom)

23 November 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Town Hall, Meeting room 11
Note change of venue

Meetings will normally be held approximately every 6 weeks, as determined by an 
annual calendar, with a minimum of 7 per calendar year.

Page 113

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 28 September 2017
	4.1 Action Log/Matters Arising
	5. Transport
	5 Appendix A - TEG 13th Nov 2017 Progress Report to Children and Young People

	6. Careers Advice and Guidance
	6 Appendix 1 IKIC Offer 2017
	6 Copy of Appendix 2 Pathways to Succes
	6 Appendix 3 Raising Participation Strategy 2017

	9. TEG Work Programme Review
	11. Review of CYP Plan
	Barnsley CYP Plan 2016-19 Appendix 1
	Action plan CYP Plan version 2

	 Dates of 2018 TEG Meetings

